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Chairman’s Statement

ERE|E

Dear Shareholders,

| present on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) the
annual report of Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

The business environment of the construction industry has
been very challenging during the year. As mentioned in the
last year, the construction market has been hard-hit by the
prolonged debates in the Legislative Council, leading to a
large logjam in funding approval for public works. This has
resulted in a substantial drop in the number of open tenders in
the market, and, in turn, intense competition and suppressed
contract prices.

Amidst the keen competition, the Group was awarded a major
contract for the Tseung Kwan O Interchange during the year.
This is actually a subcontract for bored pile works which
form a part of the Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin Tunnel and is
valued at about HK$170 million. The project has commenced
in mid-2018 and is expected to be completed by the end of
2019. While this project maintains the Group’s momentum,
we expect that there will still be some time before the market
recovers. We will need at least one or two more profitable
major new projects in order to optimise our utilisation of
equipment and labour.

Despite the decrease in turnover and that a net loss was
recorded for the year, the Group has nonetheless maintained
a net cash position throughout the year as it has sufficient
surplus generated from its operations in the previous years.

Against the current backdrop of economic uncertainties in the
global environment under the US-China trade tension and also
the interruptions in the operation of Legislative Council in Hong
Kong, we foresee that it will take longer before the construction
market can fully recover. While we anticipate more construction
works under the Airport Third Runway Program to roll out
gradually in the next year, the price competition will remain
keen and we anticipate the next year to remain tough.

Up to now, we still intend to keep the current team structure
and resources in place strategically so as to capture every
opportunity for bidding for major projects when those tenders
roll out. Yet, we will closely review the market situation from
time to time and consider to make appropriate adjustments in
due course in order to conserve our financial capabilities.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

BRRR

RAABREESG ((EFEDREE=A
BESEBRAR ([ARTF)]) ERHHKE
NEI([AREE])EHE2019F3A31H IH5F
EHER -

AEEREXNELRETTMAE - FL0
EFF - SRS RARBEETERRR
W ABARB AR T RBERMGEM 2
EMBAZTE - AREMHHEENEF
HERERD BFEBH ZHARF
MaREERIE -

BEREMBBEF R AEEREAFE
MREGEERIIERELEBEHNEZAR - It
T ER-ERBRERER o MEILE
PEIR HEEMIEST - BEER
2018F B T - FEHFA2019F K 2 A 5
o ZBE BBEERSAEEERE
BMEREM TR ENE —BERM - m
BB RERLZ—IAMEARFATER
TEHIER HEEESAEEORERS
j] o

HAFRNLXBRLLERGFER - BR
HBTFENEEELANRRER A%
ERFERD—BEREFREKF -

HHBAXTESREERS EREER
BRMTAMARE  MEBEBEASER
TRHZEWTE  BRAIEEETSHS
RERKHEAEEEER - #ARRMEF
REREEZHIEE MBS THRE
Ti2EBMEEMD  BERRIHESY
U IREBA TR MDA EREE

EERRRE  RAD AR AR
REEBRERER FHEKNHBAE
HNMZGEKSE - A B —EZY
FEEMR TEBEEERRFELAER
B UEFEMANMEBED -

®  Aunual Report 2019



In March 2017, we acquired 5% equity interest in a property
holding company. The purpose is to provide a springboard for
the Group to explore new opportunities in property investment
or property development. Through its best efforts, the Group
also expects to participate in land development project,
bringing to them its wealth of expertise, skills and experience in
construction. We are informed that a number of enquiries have
been received from parties interested in the land development
or interested to acquire the land parcel. In view of the recently
volatile property market, we keep it open as to participant
as land developer or realise the land investment. There is no
funding pressure related to this investment on the Group in the
near term.

As mentioned by the government earlier that it attaches great
importance to the Hong Kong 2030+ Development Strategy,
the Directors have been viewing it as a guideline for fulfilling
the great demand for housing and infrastructure in the medium
and long term, reinforcing the sustainable social and economic
development of Hong Kong. We hope that when the current
uncertainties in the economic and political arena are overcome,
those development plans mentioned in the Policy Address,
such as the “Lantau Tomorrow Vision”, Energizing Kowloon
East and so on can ride back to a normal track.

Our establishment in Hong Kong for almost 30 years with job
references both in iconic public infrastructure projects and the
private development sector, as well as the commitment of our
strong management team and dedicated staff to provide quality
work and services to our customers, built up the Group’s
reputation for its excellence in expertise and experience. These
have enabled us to withstand the ups and downs in the market
that we experienced in the past few decades. The Board
remains prudently optimistic about the long term prospects
of the construction market. We are confident that the Group,
as one of the most dependable contractors in the foundation
segment with an extensive range of specialised machinery
and equipment will secure more projects and participate
instrumentally in landmark projects in the future.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my respect
for and appreciation to my fellow Board members,
the management team, all staff members, suppliers,
subcontractors and other business partners and, most
importantly, our shareholders and customers for their support.

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong

21 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

The Board hereby presents the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year”/“2019”), together
with comparative figures from the previous year ended 31
March 2018 (the “Previous Year”/“2018”).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Group Revenue and Gross Margin

The Group’s revenue for the Year decreased by 13% to
HK$452 million (2018: HK$518 million). During the Year, the
Group mainly relied on contribution of the Hospital Expansion
project. However, this project had a relatively lower margin due
to subcontracting of non-bored piling works. Although Tseung
Kwan O Interchange project commenced works during the
Year, its profit contribution was not significant due to severe
price competition.

The gross profit and gross margin of the Group for the Year
was HK$4 million and 1% respectively (2018: HK$44 million
and 8% respectively). The decreases were mainly due to the
low margin of the major projects undertaken during the Year
and also overhead costs such as equipment depreciation and
labour costs which did not decrease proportionately. With the
Directors decided to maintain the team structure and resources
for capturing opportunities to bid for major projects in their
advent, overheads and administrative expenses for the Year
remained largely the same as before.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Major Projects

As at
31 March 2019
Completion status

R201953A31H

TR MR

Hospital Expansion 84%
B ERER 84%
Tseung Kwan O Interchange 54%
RERRIER 54%

Tseung Kwan O Cross Bay Link Not yet commenced

BEREZEER HARE T

Proposed Commercial/Residential Development in 7%
Wong Tai Sin District

BEAEHEERER 77%

Note: The above remaining contract values were determined with

reference to internal estimates based on currently available
information, and may be subsequently revised.

Hospital Expansion

In July 2015, the Group won the main contract for foundation
and associated works in relation to the expansion of United
Christian Hospital from the Hospital Authority. The contract is
HK$1,780 million worth including contingent and/or provisional
sums.

More than half of the project value is for demolition of existing
buildings, site formation and road reconstruction to prepare
the site for expansion of the hospital. Foundation piling works
account for the remaining contract value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

This project contributed revenue that made up about 72% of
the Group’s total revenue for the Year. Excavation and lateral
support works and construction of retaining wall were carried
out during the Year.

As at 31 March 2019, around 84% of the project was
completed and the four-year-project is expected to conclude in
the mid-2020.

Tseung Kwan O Interchange

This project, commenced in mid-2018, is a subcontract for
marine bored pile works for a part of the Tseung Kwan O — Lam
Tin Tunnel. It is an about HK$170 million contract.

The project contributed revenue amounting to about 20% of
the Group’s total revenue for the Year.

As at 31 March 2019, around 54% of the project was
completed and the project is expected to be completed by the
end of 2019.

Tseung Kwan O Cross Bay Link

This project is a subcontract for bored pile works for a part of
the Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin Tunnel. It is an about HK$60
million contract. The project has commenced in mid-2019 and
is expected to be completed by mid-2020.

Proposed Commercial/Residential Development in Wong Tai
Sin District

This project involving installation of lateral support works was
awarded to the Group in April 2015. The total contract value
is about HK$320 million (including contingent payment and/or
provisional sum), with the first phase worth HK$140 million.

The project contributed revenue amounting to about 3% of the
Group’s total revenue for the Year.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2019, the first phase of installation of lateral
support works was around 77% completed. As mentioned
in the last Annual Report and Interim Report of the Group,
because of certain technical complications in the first phase
of the project, part of the works had to be re-designed and
re-scheduled. As a result, the estimated completion date has
been postponed and the latest estimate is around mid-2020.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Due to severe price competition for tenders limited in number
as a result of filibusters on funding approval for public works
and infrastructure projects in the Legislative Council, the Group
expects its profit margin to remain substantially suppressed.
However, we foresee more construction works under the
Airport Third Runway Program to roll out gradually which may
have positive impact to the construction market. Our strategy
is to conserve our construction and financial capabilities in
order to grab the opportunities when those deferred projects
eventually kick off. The Group anticipates greater opportunities
to arise next year, which will enable it to emerge from the
current trough. The “Lantau Tomorrow Vision” project
announced during the Policy Address, which involves building
1,700 hectares of artificial islands off Lantau to tackle land
shortages, is also good news for the sustainable development
of Hong Kong and the construction industry in the medium to
long term.

The Group will use its best endeavour to bid for new projects,
but before landing major profitable projects, it expects to
operate in a tough environment in the coming financial year.

The directors of the Company nonetheless share the view
that the financial position of the Group remains healthy, as
highlighted by zero net gearing as at 31 March 2019. The
Group will therefore be able to brace against operational
pressure.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded a net loss of HK$50 million for the Year
(2018: net profit of HK$6 million). The net loss was incurred
mainly because of the drop in contract revenue and profit
margin while with largely constant overhead costs as discussed
above. In addition, provision for retention receivables was
made for two Macau projects completed in prior years in the
amount of HK$25 million.

Despite the above, the Group’s financial position remains
healthy, with current ratio at 1.5 times (2018: 1.7 times) and
total cash and bank balance amounted to approximately
HK$200 million (2018: HK$259 million). Net borrowings were 0
(2018: 0), with the Group in a net cash position as at 31 March
2019.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by 38% from HK$61
million in the Previous Year to HK$38 million for the Year. This
year’s balance included (i) an exchange gain of about HK$3
million (2018: an exchange loss of about HK$8 million) and (i)
legal and professional expenses of about HK$4 million (2018:
HK$16 million). If both (i) and (ii) were excluded, administrative
expenses would have remained at the same level.

(i) The exchange gain/loss from the outstanding Euro loans
was the result of fluctuation of the Euro between the
two financial year end dates. Such loans, temporary and
rolling-over on revolving terms, are intended for settling
purchases required to support operation. The Group has
the flexibility to settle when it receives proceeds in Euro
or when the exchange rate is more favourable to it.

(if) The legal and professional expenses in the Previous
Year included about HK$10 million incurred for a
completed project which was reimbursed by Mr. Lau
Chun Ming, a director of the Company. The amount
reimbursed was recorded as other income in the
financial statement. Therefore, the Group did not suffer
loss from that completed project.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Impairment Losses on Retention Receivables

As disclosed in the last Annual Report, a subsidiary of the
Company (the “Subsidiary”) filed a civil procedure in Macau
court against a customer to recover the retention receivables
amounting to HK$10 million. During the year, the claim was
disagreed by Macau court and the Subsidiary has been
proceeding for the appeal. In view of the uncertainties in the
appeal, the management decided to make a full provision on
the retention receivable.

Besides, the Subsidiary has been waiting to recover an amount
of HK$15 million retention receivables from another customer.
During the Year, the employer of the customer lost in its
court proceeding to preserve its land use right in the relevant
construction site. The Subsidiary would further negotiate with
the customer for the recovery of the retention receivables.
However, in view of the uncertainty in the current situation, the
management decided to make a full provision on the retention
receivable.

Finance Income/Cost

The Group recorded net finance income of about HK$1 million
for the Year, compared to net finance cost of about HK$2
million in the Previous Year. This is mainly attributable to the
net cash position and the Group placed surplus cash to time
deposits for earning interest income.

Taxation

The effective income tax rate for the Year was 12% (2018: 2%).
The lower rate for the Previous Year was mainly attributable
to the gain on disposal of plant and equipment of about HK$6
million, which was not subject to tax.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group generally finances its capital expenditures by
internal resources, long-term bank loans and finance leases.
During the Year, the Group invested approximately HK$14
million in machinery and equipment. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group’s capital commitments relating to purchase of machinery
and equipment was nil (2018: nil).

During the Year, save as disclosed herein, the Group did not
make any material acquisitions or disposals of assets.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
Liquidity

The Group generally meets its working capital requirements
by cash flows generated from its operations and short-term
borrowings. During the Year, the Group used in operating
activities a net cash outflow of approximately HK$63 million
(2018: generated a net cash inflow of HK$67 million).
Notwithstanding the deficit in cashflow for the Year, the Group
has sufficient surplus generated from its operations in the
previous years. Therefore, together with short-term bank loans
and overdraft facilities available, the Group’s daily operations
had been financially sound throughout the Year.

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a total cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$200 million (2018: HK$259
million) mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
decrease in cash and bank balances was mainly due to the
operating loss during the Year.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Borrowings

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$96 million (2018: HK$81 million)
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or Euros. Borrowings
generally include short-term and long-term bank loans, finance
leases and overdrafts bearing floating interest rates. Of the
total borrowings, approximately HK$80 million (2018: HK$29
million) was short-term bank loans and approximately HK$13
million (2018: HK$36 million) was the current portion of
long-term bank loans and obligations under finance lease with
maturity dates within 12 months.

Gearing Ratio and Total Equity

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a net cash position
(2018: same) (net borrowings divided by total equity). The
Group’s net cash position was mainly attributable to the profits
from operations accumulated during the previous years and the
reduction in capital expenditure on machinery and equipment.
For the purpose of calculating the Group’s net gearing ratio,
net borrowings refer to the total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank balances.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s net current assets were
approximately HK$90 million (2018: HK$156 million) and
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was
1.5 times (2018: 1.7 times). The Group’s total equity as at 31
March 2019 was approximately HK$626 million (2018: HK$686
million).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group’s revenue, expenses, cash and bank
balances, borrowings, other monetary assets and liabilities are
also principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Other than
the purchases paid in Euros and Singapore dollars and such
short-term Euros borrowings for settlement, the Group was not
exposed to any significant foreign currency risk and had not
employed any financial instrument for hedging.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2019, save for guarantees of performance
bonds relating to two foundation works and ancillary services
projects of the Group of approximately HK$18 million and
HK$17 million, respectively (2018: same), the Group did not
have any material contingent liabilities. The performance bonds
are expected to be released in accordance with the terms of
the respective construction contracts.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2019, the net book amount of plant and
equipment held under finance leases and pledged for long-term
bank loans was approximately HK$64 million (2018: HK$84
million) and approximately HK$76 million (2018: HK$117
million), respectively. None of the banking facilities of the Group
were secured by the Group’s bank deposits (2018: none).

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group emphasises its ability to deliver quality work on time
to customers and within the pre-determined project budget.
To execute the quality assurance policy of the Group, we
have maintained a quality management system which follows
the ISO 9001 standards. Quality assurance functions are
performed throughout the foundation works process from the
construction materials procurement stage to the completion
stage to ensure that the foundation works and ancillary
services meet the standards required by each customer. In
addition, members of our management team communicate
with our customers on a regular basis during the course of a
project to better understand and respond to our customers’
specific requirements. As our foundation business operates
on a non-recurring and project-by-project basis, we have not
entered into any long-term master contract with any of our
major customers. However, through this continued relationship
development, our Group aims to attract further business
from these customers and referrals from these customers.
Our directors consider that our Group has established good
relationship with our customers by delivering constructive
solutions and quality service to them.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Suppliers

We enter into contracts with our suppliers for construction
materials and subcontractors on a project-by-project basis
without a long term contract. Meanwhile, we maintain a
pre-approved list which admission is subject to assessment
of their background (including track record, pricing, market
reputation, timely delivery, financial conditions and after-sales
service) and the satisfactory quality of their construction materials,
and review and update the list from time to time. We also
acquired machinery and equipment from Asian and European
manufactures. We will check the product qualities and make
payments according to the contract terms. The directors consider
that we have maintained good business relationships with these
suppliers, subcontractors and manufacturers. During the year,
there was no material delay or dispute related to them causing
disruption to our operations. Some of them also have developed
good trading history of over years with our Group.

Employees

We believe that our employees are important assets to our
Group. Our directors recognise the importance of attracting
and retaining staff by providing a healthy and safe working
environment and job security. Our staff receive training to
enable them to acquire the prerequisite skills and knowledge
on health and safety related procedures before they are
assigned to carry out foundation works and ancillary services
on sites. Our Group also performs regular maintenance checks
on the machinery and equipment since our Group regards
regular maintenance as an important element to ensure safety
at the work sites. There was no fatal accidents happened in
the Group’s projects during the year and the accident rate was
lower than the industry average for the construction industry.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had approximately 175
(2018: 177) employees. The remuneration package we offer
to our employees includes salary, discretionary bonuses and
allowances. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on the individual’s qualifications, position and performance
(where applicable). We have designed an appraisal system to
assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses
and promotions. Our directors believe that the relationship
and co-operation between our management team and our
employees has been good.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Our Group also places an emphasis on environmental
protection when undertaking our foundation works and
ancillary services. Our Group’s activities are performed with
the utmost attention to quality, safety and with respect to the
environment. It is the policy of our Group to ensure that all
its activities are carried out in a manner that causes minimum
adverse impact on the environment through the establishment
and implementation of a management system which aims to
achieve environmental targets, comply with environmental
legislation and regulations, foster employees’ awareness
of their responsibilities for the environment; and review the
Group’s performance in respect of environmental matters and
strive to achieve continual improvement of its performance
and prevention of pollution. Trainings are provided to all staff
including the sub-contractor staff on the statutory and other
relevant requirements on environment and the implications of
not complying therewith.

In recognition of the policies and procedures undertaken by
our Group to address potential environmental issues with its
foundation works and ancillary services, in particular, large
diameter bored piles (with bell-out) and rock socketed steel
H-piles in pre-bored holes, our Group was awarded the ISO
14001:2004 (environment management system accreditation)
and renewed the certificate after passing the relevant audits
conducted by external certification body. Our Group also
implements an ISO 50001-based EnMS (energy management
system) that helps us to ascertain our current status of energy
use in order to devise corresponding measures to promote
efficient energy use in machinery and facilities and to formulate
a clear framework to promote continual improvement in energy
management and raise staff awareness on energy efficiency
and conservation. Our Group also monitors continuously on
the compliance with the customer’s environmental protection
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. During the
year, our Group had not been prosecuted by any governmental
authority for any purported breach of any applicable
environmental laws and regulations.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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1.

OUR REPORT

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

Overview

This report provides the corporate social
responsibility performance of Sam Woo
Construction Group Limited (the “Group”) (HKEx
Stock Code: 03822) in environmental, social and
governance from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.
This report is in compliance with the “comply or
explain” provisions of Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (ESG Reporting
Guide) under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and contains all recommended
disclosures therein.

Scope of Reporting

This ESG Report covers the operation of the
Group’s headquarters office and the foundation
works project of Tseung Kwan O.

Feedback

Your comments and advices will help determine and
reinforce the Group’s future sustainability strategy.
In order to enable the Group to comprehensively
understand and improve the performance related to
corporate social responsibility work, we eagerly look
forward to your feedback via the following contact
information:

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited
=HEEEEARLQA

1.

BMH®RE

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

M=

ABEREBEA-MEEEF
ERAF(TRIAEE]) (8
RXFr EHARSR - 03822) £2018
F4A1H E201963A31HH
RS HEgREENLELSE
EARENBR - AWREDE
FCEBBAXRZABR AR
FBHETHAR) W ER27 GRIF -
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BHRBRAREZDAEDEE K
IE:eA SETE Y SRS T 97
g - REAEEEZEMT
BENEBRCEHEEMET
FRRE - ROABRIHE B
TEBATHET G TRE:

Address #iF : 10/F, Energy Plaza, 92 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
EENERDBEREDINEREEI2HFERT 1012

Tel &% : (852) 2332-0783
Fax & : (852) 2385-0793
E-mail EF 48 : info@samwoo-group.com

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

STAKEHOLDERS COMMUNICATION

We believe that sincere communication with stakeholders
is the key for the Group’s business development and
growth and is also an indispensable part of our efforts
in sustainable development. Therefore, we deeply
understand the concerns of different stakeholders to
meet their demands and continue to improve, and thus
also enhance the Company’s management capabilities of
sustainable development and drive the realization of the
Company’s strategic objectives.

In order to better understand the stakeholders’
expectations and comments on the Group’s ESG
issues, we continuously communicate with a wide
range of stakeholders. The Group communicates with
our investors through a variety of channels to ensure
that they are up to date with our latest developments.
Such channels include result announcements, annual
and interim reports, meetings, company publications
and company website. In addition, the Group maintains
close contact with customers and contractors through
meetings, telephone conferences and e-mails. They may
also have access to more information by referring to
publications about the Group.

CARE FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

Management approach and policies

Although our business will not have material and
significant environmental impact, the Group understands
that conducting construction works will cause indirect
impact on the environment, we therefore are committed
to protecting the environment and promoting sustainable
development, contributing for building a green future.
The Group has adopted ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System and ISO50001 Energy Management
System and conducts internal and external assessments
regularly to evaluate the system effectiveness for
continuous improvement, so as to reduce and avoid
unnecessary pollution to demonstrate our commitment on
environmental management.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BB -

HERERKRE

The Group has strictly complied with all applicable

environmental protection laws and regulations, and

there were no cases of prosecution due to violation of

the relevant environmental protection laws during the
reporting period.

3.1.

Pollution Control

Tackling climate change

On the issue of climate change, the Group has
tried its best in its own sphere. We have formulated
regional procurement measures in accordance
with the guidelines of “Building Environmental
Assessment Method Plus for New Buildings”. In
compliance with the conditions we require, we
prioritize using local suppliers and regional materials
to reduce energy consumption and greenhouse gas
emission that arisen from additional transportation.

The Group spares no effort to adopt state-of-the-art
technologies and equipment, which not only
improves production efficiency, but also enhances
our environmental protection performance
and reduces energy consumption and carbon
emissions. The Group conducts regular equipment
maintenance to improve the operation efficiency and
minimize the additional emissions that caused by
equipment failure.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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In addition, to understand and manage our
business’ impact on climate change, we regularly
monitor and inspect the Group’s greenhouse gas
emission volume to determine the future response
policy.

RIR - HERERBRE

SN - BT RAE R RFIER
HRIEFB2EWTZE  RMEH
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Direct emission* Energy indirect emissions* Total greenhouse gas emissions*

EE¥R B2 R R = HE R BERBHERAE
(tCO,e)
(AR —SR(LHIREE
757.85 0.35 758.20

*Remark: The total greenhouse gas emissions in 2017/18 *F2017/18FE MR ER B HE K

is 8,419.36 tCO,e, of which direct emissions are 8,419.00 B 58,419.36 A AME —E(LIRE

tCO,e, and energy indirect emissions are 0.36 tCO,e. £ BEHREEHERAS419.000
ME — Rtk E = K8 IRE B HE R
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Total consumption Carbon emissions

BIEE BB E

Electricity 681.35 kWh 0.35 tCOe
BN T B AME_EIRE S
Gasoline (mobile sources) 18,432.97 litres 40.89 tCO.e
ol G ER) N AW _EIRE S
Diesel (mobile sources) 47,238.01 litres 130.96 tCOe
Sm OREIR) ~H AE-FIRESE
Diesel (stationary sources) 220,500.00 litres 577.00 tCOe
geom (B IR ) N AME_EIRE S
Waste Gas Emission ER B

NEE—H B EER BN
B RPN EEERER A
ITRHMELAMNELIRKRASE
EREHBEN  MBEMEER
BMARENMBIES  HA—
YA ERER - flanfEss
sprinkling water on dry ground to reduce blowing BREHEEKE B ELIR
dust. In addition, only a small number of private cars BB EERBLENR
RENAEIRRBRERY
B WEHRREREERD

on the environment. &

The Group has been focusing on the issue of
waste gas emission. Our main waste gas emission
is the dust generated during construction and the
emissions from the Group’s vehicles. We follow
the construction advice of the main contractors to
adopt all appropriate mitigation measures, such as

in the Group are used for employees’ short-distance
transport, so there has been no significant impact
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Waste Management

The Group understands that handling and disposing
of waste is an increasingly serious environmental
issue, and knows that the large amount of
construction waste generated on construction
sites will place a heavy burden on waste disposal
facilities. Therefore, we promote the waste reduction
from the source, assess production procedures
regularly, identify the source of waste to formulate
policies to reduce the generation of hazardous
waste, and facilitate recycling to treat waste in a
responsible manner. In order to handle construction
waste properly, the Group has formulated complete
construction waste management plan, including
recycling, handling, transferring and disposing of
construction waste.

The hazardous waste generated by the Group’s
Tseung Kwan O project is collected, handled
and disposed by the main contractors. Although
we do not handle hazardous waste directly, we
strictly comply with the main contractors’ waste
management measures. For example, we will
separately store hazardous waste in special
containers.

Reduction of wastewater discharge

The Group deeply agrees that the shortage of
water resources is a serious problem facing the
world. The Group handles sewage discharge
carefully, minimizing the impact on the surrounding
environment. The construction wastewater would
be treated at the sewage treatment tank first before
discharging into sewage drains to ensure the
compliance with the requirements of the sewage
discharge license. Meanwhile, the Group has been
promoting the concept of wastewater recycling to
reduce wastewater discharge and conserve water.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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3.2. Use of Resources

To make good on the Group’s promise on achieving
environmentally sustainable development, we have
formulated the code of practice and technical
guidance, which summarize our environmental
protection requirements on employees, contractors
and suppliers and provide more specific
management suggestions and measures to the
employees, to ensure all resources, including
energy, water and other natural resources, are used
in an efficient and conservative manner.

Energy conservation and consumption reduction

The Group has always been committed to
promoting the environmental protection
performance and reducing energy consumption.
For effective energy management, we have already
adopted the ISO50001 Energy Management System
and have been certified for many years. With this
systematic management, we expect to lower energy
costs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions and
achieve the Group’s sustainable development goals.
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Water conservation and efficiency enhancement

The Group deeply agrees that the shortage of water
resources is a serious problem facing the world. To
strengthen the management and protection of water
resources, the Group actively promotes the concept
of using recycled water on the construction sites.
The construction wastewater would be reused for
water spraying for dust reduction and for equipment
cleaning after treated by sewage treatment tank,
which helps to reduce water consumption and
control pollution simultaneously. In addition, the
Group is also committed to raising the employees’
awareness of water conservation, we publicize
water resources management measures to
employees in environmental trainings; meanwhile,
the Group also strengthens the maintenance,
inspection and management of water-consuming
equipment to avoid leakage caused by pipeline
damage, thus achieving the purpose of water
conservation of the Group.

During the reporting period, the major resources
consumed by the Group during its operation and
production are summarized as follows:

Resources Unit
EIR B
Electricity kWh
BN TRE
Gasoline (mobile sources) litres
ol OREIR) NI
Diesel (mobile sources) litres
Sem OnghiR) N
Diesel (stationary sources) litres
geom (B E IR ) N
Paper materials kilograms
wEmE N

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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3.3. Green Operation 3.3. KEEE
Advocating green office BEREHF A
The Group proactively integrates environmental ANEBRBREBIES TR AL
responsibility into its daily operations. In this regard, TERELETAYT  HIERK
we have established the green office policy and [SV=HIIVES S=E FNEN - PNE S
the management measures of green operation to EEENEEER  UWEKY
reduce environmental impact and the consumption IRIENBABERNIBFE
of natural resources.
Measure name Measure details
EiEEB BEAR
Green office ° Adopting zoning control for lighting and air-conditioning

systems in the office
BERAE e WAEMNRAREFARGERADEITEH

o Encouraging paperless office by replacing traditional paper
documents with electronic documents
o  EHEEAENHRA FRAEFXERKREHAE E

o Setting air conditioners’ temperature to 25°C
e REZEHRER25T

o Arranging for the supplier to collect toner cartridges to
minimize the production of hazardous waste

s WMMESLHAHNEEEDY  BIBRERVNEL

° Advocating utilization of recycled paper in response to the call
for cherishing the earth’s resources
s REFHABEHMNUZERZEHIKER

Promoting Green Concepts ° All contracts entered into with suppliers contain all
in the Supply Chain requirements on environmental protection. Suppliers are
required to comply with environmental protection laws and
regulations and the standards of the Group
EHEETPSERR e HEEFEIINARAPEIRRRENMERT  HEALT
BRIEREEBER I AEENTE

° The Group will also use posters and emails from time to time
to encourage sub-contractors to comply with environmental
protection measures

o AEENTITRERESBNEFBHRB Y EHERRRER
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Measure name Measure details

Hit&E8 BEAR

Providing Environmental ° The Group provides environmental protection training
Protection Training for every new employee for them to understand the

requirements and standards of the industry and the Group on
environmental protection

RERERIEI o AEEHEAMABNE TRHREREI  FHMAREITRR
REBEHRIBRES HHERRIRE

o At day-to-day meetings, we remind and educate employees
and workers on our environmental protection efforts

e HEBFgFIT HMYEREAHEEINRTIABHRRRERIE

Green purchase and ° Give priority to models that are energy efficient and low in
management emissions to support environmental protection when they
meet the Company’s requirements
mERBRER e HENARFERBAT  BEREESHRME MR HREE
SR A X FFERIR

o After completion of a project, tools and equipment that are in
good condition would be transported back to the warehouse
to be used for other projects

e EIREBEAZRIR RERFNIAKEGSWLEE  AHE
HiaTEHEA

° The Group would procure materials based on the actual
needs of the project and would record the quantity used for
monitoring to prevent wastage due to lack of management

e RIBERFTEERBOMBNYE  WailskMEAEE
ROBMERARREEMESRE

° Regular inspections and maintenance are carried out in order
to increase energy efficiency and slow down the damage and
prolong the working life of the machineries

e THETHERENREARAERY G MRS #SEE
ERTEF
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Green Construction AREwT

The major pollution source generated by the Group MERAEEESEENTEE
is from the daily operation of construction site. To EFEHRIRZ— BEBR
effectively control and manage as well as focusing S A E IR S IBBRIE Y
on various environmental discharges, the Group SEHE—E(HZEHEIARIN
has in place a “Green Construction Program” EHI MBS EL T - MR LR
for control and strict monitoring. It ensures that BABRREERERINT - A
constructions are carried out in accordance ZIEEELABREHEEZED
with relevant environmental protection laws and REVERERK-

regulations to minimize the environmental impacts of
the project construction process on the surrounding
environment.

Site Management
Tih EE

Airborne dust prevention ° Adopting effective dust prevention measures on site, for
example, water sprinkling, hard-paving ground, fencing,
netting and sealing

ike7]:=3 e HEFEMAEMDERRE WMEK- HwEHEL - BiE ZEE

= HEAF

° Ensuring the airborne dust control meets the requirements of
“Air Pollution Control Ordinance” and “Building Environmental
Assessment Method Plus for New Buildings”

o  HRMEIZSHEEWAZEI(ERE RO RRRERT —
MBRREIRTE

Noise suppression ° Noise shall not exceed the requirements of the “Noise Control
Ordinance” and “Building Environmental Assessment Method
Plus for New Buildings”

B 1R = e RETSHB(RIEHRID) K(GRERT-FEZEZEIRTE

° Regulating and controlling noise instantly on the construction

site
o TENE T 5 ST IR S 1T BB BRI B4

E—AFEHR o SHREEEEEAD 27



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HEREABBRE

Site Management
TihEE

Wastewater treatment ° Applying for wastewater discharge permit according to the
discharge requirements

57K B 1R o ERBEMERBAFGKBENF A &

o Assigning qualified units to monitor wastewater quality
o LA BEBABMIEITREKKERAE

° Ensuring the wastewater discharge meets the requirements of
the “Water Pollution Control Ordinance”
o HERIFKEERUERICKT L E BRI WRE

Waste management o Setting a temporary storage site for waste
REEYE R s  RIUBEEVRKIFSM

° Conducting waste classification with clear categorization
o DEERGRAENITH

o Hazardous solid waste is required to be classified and placed
in a confined area
s EEEBEEVMLVLEBENSE  UERHERAFR

o When certain amounts are stockpiled, local certified collector
is engaged to dispose of the waste
e BEFE THERUNEZAEHEERNKEESA —KIE

° Ensuring the requirement of the “Waste Disposal Ordinance”
are met

o BERNAC(EMEEGIDNRE
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GROWTH AND WIN-WIN 4., BEHR
4.1. Equal Employment 41. FERERE
Overview of the Group’s employees AEBENEEME

Gender distribution of employees

BT MHRID

M Male [ Female &

Male 159
Female & 19

Age distribution of employees

BIFRAMH
6%

[ 18-30 years old M 31-45 years old M 46-60 years old [ 61-84 years old
18-305% 31-45%%, 46-605% 61-8475%
18-30 years old 18-305% 11
31-45 years old 31-455% 38
46-60 years old 46-605% 88
61-84 years old 61-845% 41
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Management approach and policies

We firmly believe that talent is the core of
business and the key to the Group’s success; we
are committed to creating a desirable working
environment for our employees, and will provide
training courses and career development chances
in due course to assist them to grasp future
opportunities. We have a dedicated human
resources committee to regularly review and
improve the relevant policies, so as to ensure that
they are in compliance with local laws and industry
guidelines. During the reporting period, the Group
did not find any violations or receive complaints
concerning discrimination or recruitment.

Equal opportunity and diversity

We implement a policy of diversity and
non-discrimination to demonstrate our
determination to create a non-discriminatory
working environment for employees and job
applicants. We ensure that each job applicant has
corresponding right, and that employees are treated
fairly and impartially in recruitment, probation
period, promotion, resignation and other aspects.
In considering the recruitment and promotion of
an employee, we refer to his/her job performance,
experience and personal ability of the employee
as the promotion criteria, and will not discriminate
against or disregard him/her on the grounds of
sex, age, marital status, family status, pregnancy,
disability, race, ethnicity or religion. Furthermore,
we also prohibit various kinds of illegal harassment
conducts, including sexual harassment, disability
harassment and racial harassment.
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Employee benefits

To attract top talents, we regularly refer to the
industry salary benchmark to ensure that we provide
competitive remuneration package. Meanwhile, we
enter into employment contracts with employees
in accordance with “Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance” to protect employees’ legal rights and
interests and ensure they are entitled to paid leave,
sick leave, work-related injury leave and maternity
leave in accordance with statuary standards.
Moreover, if an employee has suffered from an injury
or died as the result of an accident at work, the
Group would pay a reasonable compensation to the
employee and their family in accordance with the
labour law. The Group’s policy is strongly against
overtime work for employees. Prescribed overtime
pay and compensatory leave would be given for
overtime work.

Meanwhile, the Group is attentive to the physical
and mental health of employees. To facilitate the
work-life balance and the physical and mental health
of employees, our Tseung Kwan O site also hosts
recreational activities from time to time to help
employees relieve work pressure and to enhance
employees relations, so as to strengthen contact
among employees and enhance team cohesion.

Employee communication

Having a dedicated and committed team is essential
to the continuous prosperity of the Group. We
encourage bilateral communication between the
management and employees to build mutual trust,
increase productivity and boost staff morale. We
use different channels to inform our employees
of the latest news of the Group and collect their
opinions. Our senior management will regularly
review their suggestions and propose solutions to
the problems.
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4.2. Occupational Health and Safety 42, BFEEREATS

32

Management approach and policies

The Group attaches great importance to the safety
of the construction sites and never compromises
on safety. We strive to create the safest and most
suitable working environment with zero accidents
by implementing various management measures to
prevent potential risks of occupational diseases and
industrial casualties. We have established site safety
management system to enhance the overall safety
performance of construction sites. Meanwhile, we
also conduct regular inspections and assessments
of the system. During the reporting period, the
Group has passed certification of OHSAS 18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management
System to verify the effectiveness of the system.

During the reporting period, there was no case of
violations of local occupational health and safety
laws and regulations, nor any work-related fatalities
in the Group.

Evaluation of site safety risks

To identify all health and safety-related hazards
and risks, we will conduct initial inspections of
operations and site work to identify potential risk
levels and provide risk assessments for high-risk
work to develop control measures of varying
degrees. For work processes involving significant
risks, we will set targets to achieve more ideal
management results.
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Management of site safety

The Group has also carried out a safety inspection
scheme, our Occupational Safety and Health
Committee will be responsible for monitoring the
health and safety performance while trying to
minimise the potential risks during the business
operations. We hold safety meeting each month
to review the performance of each subcontractor
in occupational safety and health and the
environmental protection, and jointly formulate
effective improvement and corrective measures.
We often remind employees of relevant safety
matters in the pre-work briefings, for high risk
jobs, the management staff would determine the
appropriate personal protective equipment for the
employees to ensure their safety. In addition to a
series of mandatory measures, we would select
and reward frontline workers who have outstanding
performance in occupational safety and health
and the environment every month; and thereby to
encourage more workers to pay attention to affairs
concerning occupational safety and health and the
environment.

Safety training

Meanwhile, as a responsible employer, we provide
industry-related safety trainings for the employees.
All staff entering the site for work are required to
take safety guidance training courses in advance.
The safety supervisor will provide relevant trainings
including introducing safety-related laws, safety
operation guidelines, potential hazards and
emergency response at the construction sites to
enhance their awareness of safety operation. We
have also established a training allowance scheme
to subsidise staff to attend external courses
which are essential to the safety of our business
operations.
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4.3. Talent Development 43. NTERE
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Management approach and policies

The success of the Group relies on the efforts of our
employees and we also understand that continuous
improvement is the key element of our business
success. As such, we encourage employees
to engage in life-long learning, actively provide
trainings for employees, facilitate employees’
individual development, and expect that they can
grow with the Group together.

Training System

The Group has sponsored and provided
opportunities for employees to participate in
various trainings to enhance their knowledge and
skill, for example providing mechanical operations
training for technician trainees and sponsoring
their license examinations. Furthermore, the
Group would nominate a number of employees
to attend operations trainings, for new machine
models, provided by the manufacturers; and
would also participate in the exhibitions to visits
latest mechanical developments. Through such
programs, employees would be able to gain
more comprehensive knowledge on mechanical
operations and grasp new skills faster to help
driving the Company’s development.

The Group has always been concerned with
managing the career development of young
junior employees. In daily operations, the Group
will arrange team leaders to provide on-the-job
training for them and arrange experienced staff
to offer practical advice to them and to share
valuable business and life experiences with them.
In addition, managerial staff would attend seminars
on construction industry management or new
developments, organised by industry or professional
organisations to enhance their knowledge in
management and broaden their horizons. If a
department deems it necessary, employees may be
allocated to other positions to acquire knowledge
and experience from different fields.
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4.4. Protection of Rights and Interests

Management approach and policies

The Group and its subsidiaries prohibit the
employment of child labour. The Company does
not employ any child labour and forced labour in
any form. During recruitment, we would check the
applicants’ identity cards and other valid certificates
for age verification. During the reporting period, the
Group found no cases of child labour and forced
labour.

5. OPERATIONAL COMMITMENT

5.1.

Supply Chain Management

Management approach and policies

As a responsible company, the Group not only
commits to complying with all operation-related
laws and regulations but also expects to create a
better and greener future with our supply chain.
In order to give them a clear understanding of the
Group’s commitments to social, environmental
and occupational health and safety excellence, we
clearly set out requirements and standards during
the tendering and procurement processes, and set
up effective mechanisms to ensure that both parties
act in strict accordance with laws and regulations.
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Supplier selection criteria

The Group has established an internal policy
to regulate the tendering and quoting process,
which requires that detailed assessments must be
performed on suppliers and contractors to ensure
that they meet the Group’s internal requirements;
the policy covers suppliers’ and contractors’
past performance, labour rights, performance in
occupational safety and health and environmental
protection, financial position and business ethics.
Moreover, all departments within the Group maintain
close communication to monitor and ensure that
the tendering and procurement process meets the
standards and is fair and transparent.

Stringent regulation

The Group adopts a comprehensive supply chain
management mechanism, including a code of
conduct and a supplier assessment system, to
monitor and assess the performance of suppliers
in areas ranging from product and service quality
to business ethics. We will conduct regular
assessments of the suppliers’ social, environmental
protection, occupational health and safety
standards to ensure that they comply with the law.
Any non-compliance may result in exclusion from
the tender list and termination of the contract.

Furthermore, the project management team of
the Group would continuously monitor the skill
and labour safety performance of the contractors,
recording the relevant inspection results for follow
up work. We would also hold regular meetings with
contractors to review the quality and speed of work
of the contractors. The Group has implemented
environmental protection and occupational, safety
and health guidelines for contractors. These
include construction and engineering design,
material selection, pollution control and other good
practices. Additionally, the Group would instruct
suppliers and contractors to provide training related
to the operations of the Group’s environmental
management system.
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Sustainable development supply chain

In addition to actively consolidating its internal
sustainable development management, the Group
is also committed to promoting the operation model
of sustainable development through the value chain,
jointly contributing to sustainable development
with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders.
We require suppliers and contractors to comply
with the Group’s environmental protection and
occupational health and safety policies and strict
corporate governance standards. Furthermore, we
also support freedom of association, firmly believe
that all employees in the supply chain should be
free from discrimination, and will never tolerate child
labour and forced labour practices by suppliers. We
regularly review the performance of suppliers and
contractors to ensure that they comply with relevant
regulations and continue to make improvements.

Quality Construction

Management approach and policies

The Group has always regarded the quality of
products as the key to our business success.
Therefore, we strive to provide customers
with high-quality, healthy and safe foundation
engineering service in accordance with all applicable
laws and regulations. We have in place a complete
safety and quality management system which
enables us to prevent major accidents and provide
quality products and services to meet customer
requirements. The Group has continuously obtained
ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification.

During the reporting period, there was no violation
of laws and regulations on the health and safety of
products and services, labelling, and privacy, and
did not have any cases of product recall for safety
or quality reasons and received no complaints.

5.2.

—R—AFFR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

AfFE R e

AEEERE B AN HFE
BRER &% BAITRNE
BEERERAFEZRNZ
B BftER BEME
¥ & HF BRI R EERE
HE B o BAPI 2 SRR Kok
R AR R B Y IR AR M B SR 2
BRREBRIAREREBE
EORIRAE o AN - I HF
LA m BEHERNR
EEIHERXRE  MAER
TRAHERERETIRARSE
58 - LM EHRGEHER
AR - IR FE
ST AR B AR E 3 B B 1R SO -

EHET
FIE 5 R

AEE-ERERNEEARAE
I R I A AR - B 3R
MY N ERAABEANEERE
BOmMERPREES  BR
N2 ETERSE - &M
BARENLZE2RMEEER
M BER B I B R BB
EREREEEINE R R
HoRmBREELMER M
EE I EEEISO 90018 &
BRI RRGE -

RS HIRE - AN & E Y &
BREDMRBOEERR
2 RS BRELLEEED
ERERD - WREEMNEE
ZEREEEHMBIFERE
o m (8 22 sl Mk B AR R A o

37



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HEREABBRE

38

Product safety

In order to ensure all piles meet relevant safety
standards, we conduct product testing with specific
and effective methods to make sure that our
products meet quality and technical requirements.
We have developed testing and inspection plans
for different stages of the construction project,
and run various appropriate tests on all piles in
accordance with the relevant contractual provisions
upon completion of projects; of which, quality
control tests cover a wide range of areas, including
inspection of the angle of inclination of the bored
pile, the quality of concrete and fractures, the
binding force between the concrete and rocks,
and a series of incoming quality control to ensure
the quality and safety of the product in all aspects.
The Group would also provide customers the test
reports of all piles to guarantee the stability of the
pile structure.

Customer service

The Group is committed to becoming a
professional and reliable business partner, and
firmly believes that reliability, fairness, high quality
and transparency are the key to the success of
long-term close cooperation. In addition to serving
with care, our product services also cover quality
assurance after completion of the project. We
would, in accordance with the relevant contract
terms, be responsible for fixing any construction
defects within the warranty period. Typically,
the warranty period is within one year after the
completion of the project. In addition, we set up
multiple channels for customers to give feedback
and ensure that we can collect customers’ opinions,
S0 as to improve product and service quality.
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Protection of consumer data privacy

The Group focuses on information security and
confidentiality, all employees are required to comply
with the privacy policy regarding personal data and
Hong Kong's “Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance”
to protect customer data. The Group stands by the
confidentiality clause in the signed contract with
the customers, ensuring that the information and
documents provided by the customers would be
properly stored.

Advertising and Labelling

As a responsible company, the Group understands
the importance of advertising and sales pitches.
Accordingly, our business units strictly comply with
all laws and self-discipline practices relating to the
labelling and promotion of products and services. In
addition, we regularly review management approach
to make sure that the publicity information is timely
and accurate and complies with relevant laws and
regulations.

Corporate Governance

Management approach and policies

The Group firmly believes that fairness, honesty
and integrity are important business assets.
We will never tolerate any forms of corruption,
including bribery and solicitation, fraud, and money
laundering. As such, to create and maintain an
ethical corporate culture, we have formulated
regulations on professional ethics in economic and
business activities, requiring business partners
to sign a commitment letter of cooperation unit,
regulating their companies and business personnel
to abide by the provisions of professional ethics,
and jointly maintaining a “simple, transparent, clean
and fair” partnership.
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Preventive regulation

In order to prevent any conflict of interests, we
have established conflict of interests mechanism,
and employees should first make a statement to
the board of directors through reporting channels.
We have also formulated fair, open and impartial
procedures for product or service procurement
or tendering to inhibit any potential corruption. In
addition, the Group employs independent auditors
to audit the Group’s financial statements, to
ensure that the Group’s accounts are correct and
to strengthen financial oversight to protect the
interests of shareholders.

Whistle-blowing procedures

As a part of anti-corruption measures, we have
established a reporting system, and have developed
relevant policies to effectively implement internal
monitoring and risk management. The policies
provide reporting guidelines and channels for
employees, and help increasing employees’
alertness towards fraud, corruption and other
misconduct.

Based on the above-mentioned monitoring and
prevention measures, there were no cases of
corruption involving either of the Company or
individual employees during the reporting period,
and no corruption was found.
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GIVING BACK TO SOCIETY

With the mission of giving back to the society and the
philosophy of “taking from the society and giving back
to the society”, the Group fully understands that our
responsibility not only lies in our direct contribution to
social economy, but also includes the influence and effect
of our business operation and public welfare projects
on the whole society. The Group actively contacts
community groups with similar corporate responsibility
concepts as the Group to understand the needs of the
community. In order to fulfill its duty as a corporate citizen
and serve the community, the Group donated to more
than 10 different charitable institutions and community
organizations in the past year, including ORBIS, Chi
Lin Nunnery, Yan Chai Hospital and Food Angel, etc. In
the future, we will continue to look for more non-profit
organisations of different types to collaborate with,
expecting to bring benefits to more people.

AWARD AND ACHIEVEMENT

Award and achievement name

RIE/HBRER

ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certification

ISO 140013358 RE R R &

ISO 50001 Energy Management System Certification
ISO 50001 8L & HE §8 R 32 &

OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health and
Safety Management System Certification
OHSAS 18001 X REN L2 EER AR E

ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification

ISO 9001 & B IR 8 XRE
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SGS Hong Kong Limited
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DW Certification Limited
RIERBERAT]
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SGS Hong Kong Limited & DW
Certification Limited
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8. SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW 8. AHEBBRAMBE

ENVIRONMENT

R
Polluting emissions Unit
SRERY B
Solid waste
EREREE Y
Hazardous waste' kg
BEEEY Ny
Hazardous waste intensity kg/per cubic metre of concrete
EEREENEE DI/ B KRR
Non-hazardous waste' tonnes
BmEEZRY N
Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/per cubic metre of concrete
BREEREYEE YN PESEVI =Y -
Greenhouse gas emission and intensity
BEREBIREREE
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCO,-e
REREERAE AE—EiEE
Direct emission tCO,-e
BEHEM AE_EIREE
Energy-related indirect emissions tCO,-e
BE R B HE R AW _EIREE
Emission Intensity tCO,-e/per cubic metre of concrete
B EE R G E 8 B KRRLT
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ENVIRONMENT

RE

Energy use
BEIRE A
Power purchased? kWh 681.35
BENE T E B
Power use intensity® kWh/per employee 0.12
REZE TRE SHET
Gasoline (mobile sources) Litres 18,432.97
ol ORENR) 7t
Gasoline use intensity litre/per cubic metre of concrete 3.32
FURE R E g A KRRL
Diesel (mobile sources) litres 47,238.01
Sem ORER) 7t
Diesel use intensity litre/per cubic metre of concrete 8.51
SOmEREE TG KRE L
Diesel (stationary sources) litres 220,500.00
g (B E IR ) Zas
Diesel use intensity litre/per cubic metre of concrete 39.73
LHEARE FBN KRR LT
Water cubic metres N/A
7K 377K i A
Water use intensity cubic metres/per cubic metre of concrete N/A
RKEE SRR G KRR NiE A
Usage volume of other materials
Hti R ERE
Papers kg 938.65
S NI
Notes: Eit
1. As the non-hazardous waste and hazardous waste 1. BHATEENBEERIEERE

generated by the Group’s Tseung Kwan O project are EHNEEEREYNEEZEREEYY

collected, handled and disposed of by main contractors,
no relevant data is available during the reporting period.
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2. As the electricity power of construction sites is provided 2. RATHHE AR ARER
by main contractors of the sites, only the power use of the B BB ESEBRAEH
Hong Kong office is contained AE=

3. As the data includes only power use of the Hong Kong 3. EE)J_A%HJ%/\ BEBEBMAENH
office, the number of employees in the Hong Kong office is CHREERAEANAEET
used for the calculation of intensity Z»@ )\%(T’Eﬁ’j” EiFE

Employee Unit

{=3=1 By

Total no/of Empolyee Nos. 178

BTHEAR N

By Age

FHRDMm

18-30 years old Nos. 11

18-3075% AH

31-45 years old Nos. 38

31-45%% A

46-60 years old Nos. 88

46-605% A

61-84 years old Nos. 41

61-845% A

By Gender

=i

Male Nos. 159

B ABL

Female Nos. 19

Z AH

Health & Safety

BRERZE

Work-related fatalities Nos. 0

AITEBREIET AH A

Anti-corruption

R & 8
No. of prosecutions against Corruption No. of cases 0
BSRMAEGHEA IRE
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HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

ESG Reporting Guide Subject Areas/Aspects/”
Comply or Explain” Provisions

ESGHERSITHER BE TETHRBRKX

A. ENVIRONMENT

A. RIE

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEAT : BERY

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBHEA2 :: EREA

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBHA3: RERARER

B. Society

B. #&

Employment and Labour Practices
EREREIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EEB1: E &

Aspect B2 : Health and Safety
EHEB2: @RERE

Aspect B3 : Development and Training
EHEB3 : #EREI

Aspect B4 : Labour Standards
[EEB4 : T X8|

Operating Practices

EEEH

Aspect B5 : Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5 : fEREE

Aspect B6 : Product Responsibility
[EEB6: EmERE

Aspect B7 : Anti-Corruption

BEB7 : RES

Community
#HE
Aspect B8 : Community Investment

EHEBS : HERE

RIR - HERERBRE

9. FARBIMERE  HEREAHE
Bl R5

ESG Reporting Guide Chapter
ESG M EESIEH

3.1 Pollution Control
3.1 5P
3.2 Use of Resources
32 ZMEIR
3.3 Green Operation
33 BEE

4.1 Equal Employment

41 FPERERE

4.2 Occupational Health and Safety
42 BERRRT D

4.3 Talent Development

4.3 NTER

4.4 Protection of Rights and Interests
4.4 R IRME

5.1 Supply Chain Management
5.1 s E IR

5.2 Quality construction

5.2 BE kT

5.8 Corporate Governance

5.3 IbEREE

6 Giving Back to Society
6 ElEE 1t =

ZE—AEEH o SHREEEERAT 45
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, and strives to maintain transparent
and responsible management practices that will create long
term value for the interests of shareholders. The Board will
continuously review and improve the Group’s corporate
governance practices, and maintaining a high standard of
business ethics across the organisation.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry with all directors, the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2019.

As required under the CG Code, the Board has established
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.
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THE BOARD

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance
long term shareholders’ value. The Board oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance
of the Group. It also ensures that good corporate governance
policies and practices are implemented within the Group. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The management is
responsible for execution of the strategies in the Group’s daily
operations and implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board currently comprises 7 members whose biographies
and family relations are set out in the “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 57 to 60 in this annual
report. The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are separately held by Mr. Lau Chun Ming and
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, respectively, to maintain an segregation
of duties between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to
manage the Group’s business and oversee the management.
The directors bring a good balance of skills and experience to
the Company. The independent non-executive directors serve
the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group.
The directors have been made fully aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to shareholders.

The executive directors have entered into service contracts
with the Company and each of the independent non-executive
directors has been appointed on specific term of three years.
Notwithstanding the specific term of appointments, the articles
of association of the Company provides that every director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible for re-election by the shareholders.
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Board meetings

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31
March 2019, at approximately quarterly intervals. All directors
attended these meetings, at which business development,
investment strategies, financial performance and potential risks
relating to the daily operations of the Group, were discussed.

Directors’ induction and development

In the year ended 31 March 2019, all directors complied
with the provision of the CG Code in relation to continuous
professional development and submitted their training records
to the Company. In doing so, the directors have undertaken
various forms of activities that have included attending a
presentations given by external professional advisors, and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business,
directors’ duties and responsibilities. The Company held a
training for regulatory and compliance update for all directors
during the year and intended to arrange another training for
them to refresh their knowledge in the forthcoming year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees to
oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and help
it in the execution of its responsibilities. These committees
each have specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties, and which
require the committees to report back on their decisions or
recommendations to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee is responsible for the engagement of
external auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management system. It is made up
of three independent non-executive directors including Mr. Ip
Tin Chee, Arnold (chairman), Professor Wong Sue Cheun,
Roderick and Mr. Chu Tak Sum.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2019, which was attended by all of its members,
to review, among other matters, the consolidated financial
statements, internal control review report and continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018, and have a private meeting with external auditor
without the presence of the management; and the unaudited
interim financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2018.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible for
annually reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board (including its mix of skills, knowledge and experience),
making recommendations on proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors. It also oversees
the implementation of the Company’s policy on diversity of
directors. It is made up of four members including Professor
Mr. Chu Tak Sum,
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, being independent non-executive

Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick (chairman),

directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an executive director.
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Company has a diversity policy of Board members. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are
based on merit, and candidates are considered against various
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business operations and environment as
well as the industry in which the Company operates. The
nomination committee will continuously monitor and review
the implementation of this policy and the progress towards
achieving the measurable objectives.

The Board currently comprises 6 male and 1 female directors
with different age, educational background, skills and
experience. The nomination committee considers that our
directors have extensive experience in different fields and
professions that are relevant to the Company’s business, which
enable them to provide valuable and relevant insights to the
Board.

The nomination committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of the nomination policy which aims at
setting out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company; ensuring that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensuring the
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the following criteria should be considered: character and
integrity; qualifications; measurable objectives in achieving
Board diversity; independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules; potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board; time commitment; and such other perspectives that are
appropriate to the Company’s business and succession plan.
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The nomination committee will conduct regular review on
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
policy and where appropriate, make recommendations
on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and business needs. Upon receipt of the
proposal of appointment of new director and the biographical
information of the candidate, the nomination committee should
evaluate such candidate based on the objective criteria it has
set forth to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. For directors standing for re-election, the
nomination committee will review the contribution of the retiring
director and the level of participation and performance on the
Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the directors
and senior management of the Group and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy for approval by the Board. It is made
up of four members including Mr. Chu Tak Sum (chairman),
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold,
being independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Lau Chun
Ming, an executive director.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management, the Remuneration Committee would consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior
management, performance and contributions of the Directors
and the senior management and the change in market
conditions. Details of the remuneration paid to the directors
and the other five highest paid employees are set out in notes
29(a) and 7(c), respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, and
reviewing their effectiveness of annually through the audit
committee. The audit committee reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Group has maintained an operation manual, which
provides a comprehensive internal control guidance and
procedures on the Group’s operational cycles relating to
revenue, purchase and expenditure, inventory and human
resources etc., to ensure proper accounting records are
kept so that reliable financial reporting can be provided,
effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also
shaped the control environment at which and how the Group
operates in, including the budgeting controls, investment
decision making, risk assessment and practices of corporate
governance. These systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and protection against
errors, losses and fraud.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different
aspects of the Group which are discussed below.

The Company has appointed an internal control adviser to
conduct annual review on the risk management and internal
control system of the Group for the year and reported their
findings and recommendations to the audit committee and
the Board. It is designed to review the effectiveness of the
Group’s material internal controls so as to provide assurance
that key internal control measures are carried out appropriately
and are functioning as intended. During the year, management
of contracts with customers, revenue recognition, lease and
tenancy, risk assessment and conflict of interests reporting
cycles were reviewed and found that adequate controls are in
place.
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For the foundation works business, the Group has to comply
respective requirements and pass the regular reviews in order
to retain its listing in the Development Bureau Specialist List
(Group 1) in large diameter bored pile (with bell-out), the
Housing Authority List of Piling Contractors (large diameter
bored piling category) Probation and the Buildings Department
Registered Specialist Contractor — Foundation Category.
The Group has also implemented a management system in
accordance with the requirements under ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
ISO 50001 and OHSAS 18001 to ensure that the Group’s
services meet the requisite health and safety, quality and
environmental requirements. During the year, the Group passed
the audits conducted by external consultants and renewed
these certificates. Upon completion of pile construction,
the Group is required to engage external professionals to
conduct various applicable tests on all piles based on the
relevant contractual requirements and ensure full compliance
with customer requirements. Subject to these piling records
available to the customers for their testing and inspection,
the authorised persons employed by the customers certify
the value of the works completed in the payment certificates
issued to the Group. Therefore, stringent on-going controls and
monitoring systems have already been embedded in the daily
operations of the foundation works business.

The executive directors held monthly meetings with senior
management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification
and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group’s resources in comparison to the
budgets, and the operational matters to ensure the Group has
complied with the regulations that have material impact to the
Group’s business. The aim is to enhance the communication
and accountability of the directors and management so that
significant strategic, financial, operational and compliance
risks or potential deviations are timely identified and dealt
with in a proper manner, while significant issues are reported
back to the Board for their attention. The Company also
compiles monthly reports to the Board (including independent
non-executive directors) to update the latest financial
performance, position and prospects of the Group.
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The Company also has a policy for disclosure of inside
information. While any potential inside information will be
escalated to the executive meetings or the Board via the
established reporting channels, the directors will assess and
determine if inside information of the Company exists where
timely disclosure is required to be made by an announcement
published on the Stock Exchange website. On the other hand,
in order to enhance the communication with the market, the
Company will publish voluntary announcements to update
the public on the latest development of the Group’s business
to enhance the transparency of the Company, whenever
practicable.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system at its Board meeting
on 21 June 2019, including its financial, operational and
compliance controls, and its risk management functions.
The Board’s review included a consideration of the internal
control evaluations conducted by the executive management,
the findings of the external auditors during the annual audit
and the internal control review reported by an internal control
adviser engaged by the Company. There was no material
fraud or errors came to the attention of the Board from all
these sources. Therefore, the Board was satisfied that the
risk management and internal control systems were in place
and implemented effectively during the year without significant
weakness identified.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration for year ended 31 March 2019
in relation to statutory audit work of the Group amounted
to HK$1.5 million (2018: HK$1.5 million), of which a sum
of HK$1.2 million (2018: HK$1.2 million) is paid or payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, independent auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit services related to the audit
for the year ended 31 March 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The reporting responsibilities of
the Company’s external auditor on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 73 to 83 of this annual report. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
coordinates the supply of information to the directors and is
the primary contact person within the Company for all matters
relating to the duties and responsibilities of the company
secretary. All directors have access to the company secretary
to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year, he had taken no
less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to his
biographical details which are set out on page 60 of this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly
and are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively.
Shareholders are entitled by the articles of association of
the Company and are also encouraged to participate in the
Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend
and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and put forward proposals.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary for the such purpose and specify the
transaction of any business to propose in such meeting.
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If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate
must be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to
the company secretary at the Company’s headquarters or at
the Registration Office (Tricor Investor Services Ltd., Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional
documents of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2019.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

We are committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders
and the market. We have established a shareholders’
communication policy which emphasises the importance of
regular communication to the shareholders and the market to
ensure they have the available information reasonably required
to make informed assessments of the Group’s strategy,
operations and financial performance. The annual shareholders’
meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with
its shareholders and for shareholder participation. In addition,
the Company’s website (www.samwoo-group.com) contains
extensive company information which is easily accessible.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. The Board considers a number of factors in
declaration and payment of dividends, including the financial
condition, results of operation and level of cash; statutory
and regulatory restrictions; future prospects and any other
factors that the Board may consider relevant. The Board
has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company to the extent that the Company
shall maintain adequate cash reserve for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chun Ming, aged 76, is an executive director, the
Chairman and founder of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and business development
of the Group, overseeing the tendering and quotation
process, research and development and formulation of overall
corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Lau has been involved
in the foundation works business since 1990. He is a brother
of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun Ka, the spouse of
Ms. Leung Lai So and the father of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, aged 67, is the chief executive officer
and an executive director. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries within the Group. He joined the Group in the
1970s. He is responsible for the overall management of
foundation works and ancillary services projects of the Group.
He has been involved in the foundation works business since
1990. He is the brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau
Chun Ka, brother-in-law of Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Ka, aged 65, is an executive director. He
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
He joined the Group in the 1970s. He is responsible for the
overall management of maintenance and repair of machinery
and equipment of the Group. He has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is the brother of
Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, brother-in-law of
Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Ms. Leung Lai So, aged 72, is an executive director. She
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in the 1970s. She is responsible for
the administrative and human resources management of
the Group. She obtained a diploma in smaller company
management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
July 1997. She is the spouse of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, mother of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan and sister-in-law of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and
Mr. Lau Chun Ka.

EENSHNEEERRE

HITES

BIRAKE - 7657 AEERITES - =
BEREIPA - BNAAEBZHHEB A A
MES - FEEBEASEEBRERE
NEBER  BEERELRERRE - 5
K HI T BB A B BK - 25 £ B 19904
BLEMAETRER - FAIRBLER
2IRRGCENBR - REERZTHEBIA
MR TR R -

BIIRBE KL - 6758 0 AKEITHARE R
TEEZ - FHARAEEZRENBEARMNE
EoBRETERMBAEE - RAFAR
SEWETRERMERBEBNERE
B o RE1990F 2 B E T2 H o
BRERAEERIIRREENLE
RBER LT/ N B 22 £ 8RR o

BIIRREE - 6557 HUIITES - WIAR/A
SEZHMBATNES - RREL+ER
MBAKE - AEARERHKLRERE
MEIEHERBEIE - (RE1990F B2 Mt &
TiREK - WRIRAXERBIRE L E
BN - REH LT/ N BT L
HY AR o

RE#IZL 725 HITES o WIHAR
SEZEWBRATMES - BFRE+FR
MBEREE - FAEREEMNITHERER
ANERERE - HR1997F7 ARBEH
Y ARENRIRREEER - #AZIK
B ECS - B A T & 31 % 2R
BY 5% A I IR R St A 9 18 08 o

—R—AFFR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

57



58

Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENSHNEEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 74, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in September 2014. Professor Wong holds a
bachelor’'s degree of arts from San Diego State College in
the United States of America, and a doctoral’s degree in
mathematics from the University of Alberta in Canada. He is
a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada, and Chevalier dans
I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur of France, and elected
as a member of the European Academy of Sciences. Currently,
he is the Special Advisor to the President at Southern
University of Science and Technology of China. He had been
Chair Professor of Mathematics and the Director of the Liu Bie
Ju Centre for Mathematical Sciences at City University of Hong
Kong until his retirement in July 2019.

Mr. Chu Tak Sum, aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Chu is a registered architect in Hong
Kong under the provisions of the Architects Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 408 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has been
engaged as an architect for about 42 years. Mr. Chu obtained
a bachelor’s degree of arts in architecture studies from The
University of Hong Kong in 1971. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects and holds Class
1 Registered Architect qualification of the PRC. Mr. Chu is
currently the managing director of T.S. Chu Architects Limited.
He had been an independent non-executive director of Henry
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 859) until February 2018.

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Ip obtained a Master of Arts degree
from Trinity College, Cambridge University. Mr. Ip is chairman
of Altus Holdings Limited (stock code: 8149), which group
companies focus on providing corporate finance services
to listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong, as well as
property investments.
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Mr. lp is an independent non-executive director of Pioneer
Global Group Limited (stock code: 224), Pak Fah Yeow
International Limited (stock code: 239), and Icicle Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8429), each of which is a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ip worked for
Standard Chartered Asia Limited and was a director of Yuanta
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited thereafter until January 2001,
specializing in a range of corporate finance and advisory
activities for companies based in Hong Kong and China. From
1984 to 1988, he worked at Arthur Andersen & Co in London
specializing in taxation and qualified as a Chartered Accountant
in 1988.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Kwai Keung, Peter, aged 64, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
business development, tendering and overall management
of the foundation works and ancillary services projects of the
Group. He obtained a master degree in arbitration & dispute
resolution from City University of Hong Kong in 2003. He has
more than 35 years of experience in the construction industry
both locally and abroad. He is a member of the Institution of
Civil Engineers and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Mr. Ho Ting Leung, Robin, aged 63, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
managing, supervising and actuating the current projects of
the Group. He has over 35 years of experience, working in
the construction industry, since graduated in 1981 from Civil
Engineering Department of Hong Kong Polytechnic.
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Mr. Kwok Kan Kuen, Lawrence, aged 55, is a project
manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
supervision of the related foundation projects of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group in July 2012, he has over 20 years of
experience in the engineering field. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from the Chu Hai College in 1987
and a master’s degree of science in international construction
management and engineering from the University of Leeds
in the United Kingdom in 1994. He is currently a registered
professional engineer under the Engineer Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 409 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a
member of each of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
respectively.

Ms. Lau Pui Shan, aged 45, is the chief financial officer of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in September 1999. She is responsible
for financial accounting, treasury and banking matters,
investors relation and information technology system of the
Group. She obtained a bachelor’'s degree of commerce in
accounting and finance and a master’s degree of commerce in
international business from the University of New South Wales
in Australia. She is a fellow certified practicing accountant of
CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She is the daughter of Mr. Lau
Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 52, is the company secretary
of the Company. He obtained a diploma of business
administration from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
an accredited mediator of The Hong Kong Mediation Centre.
He has over 25 years company secretarial experience.
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The directors of the Company submit their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. The segment information of
the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and principal risks of the Group for
the year are included in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis in this annual report.

The environmental policies and relationships with key
stakeholders are included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report. Further details of the above are
included in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report in this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

on page 84 of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set out on page
196 of this annual report.

Directors' Report
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to about HK$50,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2019,
calculated under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to HK$201 million (2018: HK$200 million).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

No shares were issued in the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018. Details of share capital are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 March 2019.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed
on 15 September 2014. No options have been granted,
exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up
to the date of this annual report.
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The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain personnels
to remain with the Group and to motivate them to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to the Scheme and any other share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the Company’s listing date, i.e. 16 October 2014, being
40,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each on the listing date
(or equivalent to 160,000,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each
subsequent to share subdivision effective on 23 December
2015) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal must not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding
options which have been granted and have yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the
manner as set out in the Scheme, the maximum number
of shares underlying the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by
a grantee (the “Option Period”) shall be the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the time
of making an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the offer date.
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Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted.

The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 upon acceptance of an offer of
an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a trading day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value
of the shares on the offer date of the relevant option.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after
the date of adoption.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Chun Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Independent non-executive directors

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick
Mr. Chu Tak Sum
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Professor Wong Sue Cheun,
Roderick and Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies was a
party and in which a director or controlling shareholders of the
Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 57 to 60.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(@) Directors’ interest in the Company:

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.0025 each held (long position)
FisSREE.0025E T HEBREE (H8)

Name of director

BB

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 1,200,000,000

BRI E

Ms. Leung Lai So 1,200,000,000

REHLL

(o) Directors’ interest in associated corporations of the
Company:

Name of associated

EERE

R2019F3A31H  EERALRBI REAE
BB (FE RBH RBEGRD ([BH R
B &G ]) EXVED) Rk~ MHER G &
EHFPEAREE S KIE KRG FE352(%
BATEFENECMATSHEOER AR
ARG ET AR AN ER10FT S /) E T B 7T A
EZHETESFRXHNEESTAENG AR
AR RABNT

@ ZBEERARAR

Percentage of
shareholding

BREAL

71.43%

71.43%

/|

el

) HE 2

H

Capacity
5

Founder of a discretionary trust

RREFENDEIRA

Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust
2RETNZEA

b) EBEERARRBEBOZENERS

Percentage of

Name of director ~ corporation Number of shares shareholding
Esps HEEEERE ROHE FRESL
Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares 100%

BRA L 61%

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares 100%
BIRALE 10,0008

Ms. Leung Lai So Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares 100%
REEHIT 61

Ms. Leung Lai So Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares 100%
2EEHIL 10,000%

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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BEEFTA - R2019F3H31H - LT A
T(FPBRARAESHIZTRAR)R
ARER KRR R HEERERE SR

So far as the directors are aware, as at 31 March 2019 the
interest and short positions of the persons, other than a director
or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to

be kept under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

(c)  Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in

the Company:

Name of shareholder

Ex4E

Actiease Assets Limited

Silver Bright Holdings Limited

Managecorp Limited
as trustee of a unit trust

(EREMNEFENZTEA)

IQ EQ (NTC) Trustees Asia
(Jersey) Limited (formerly

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each held

Fi#s S IR {E0.00257% T HY
EBREA

Long position 1,200,000,000
%2 1,200,000,0004%

Long position 1,200,000,000

##21,200,000,0004%

Long position 1,200,000,000
%2 1,200,000,0004%

Long position 1,200,000,000
17%&1,200,000,0000%

HIERPIZE336IKB T FERELMATR
B SRR

() ETEMEAKRRDTMEELKAR -

Percentage of

shareholding Capacity
FRESL 54
71.43% Beneficial owner
EmEAA
71.43% Interest of a controlled
corporation
REHEE MR

71.43% Trustee
ZFEA

71.43% Trustee
XA

known as First Names
(NTC) Trustees Asia Limited)
(R 78First Names (NTC)
Trustees Asia Limited)

Notes: Hiat -

1,200,000,0000% f% 13 4 Silver
Bright Holdings Limited® &
# A 1) A A]Actiease Assets
LimitedPT 5 & - MSilver Bright
Holdings Limited 3 & % & A &3
B#H T2 REEMEEES -

1. 1,200,000,000 shares were held by Actiease Assets 1.
Limited, a company wholly owned by Silver Bright Holdings
Limited which is indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Leung Lai So is the beneficiary.

Silver Bright Holdings Limited
B i 1= 5T M9 & 5L AManagecorp
Limited 100%# A& © m
Managecorp Limited#) B 17
BA7EIAIQ EQ (NTC) Trustees
Asia (Jersey) Limited (i f8First
Names (NTC) Trustees Asia
Limited) 1 & 21k 83 5 A 3R 3L 1Y
2 REEFENZFEA100%FE °

2. Silver Bright Holdings Limited is 100% held by 2.
Managecorp Limited as trustee of a unit trust, of which
issued units are 100% held by 1Q EQ (NTC) Trustees Asia
(Jersey) Limited (formerly known as First Names (NTC)
Trustees Asia Limited) as trustee of a discretionary trust
set up by Mr. Lau Chun Ming.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
dated 15 September 2014.

In addition, the Company requested and obtained the
information of the companies owned by the controlling
shareholders of the Company. The independent non-executive
directors, based on their review of the confirmation, noted that
no engagement in competing business had been reported by
the controlling shareholder of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2019; and there was no particular situation
rendering the full compliance of the undertakings being
questionable.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 100% (2018: 100%) of
the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 72% (2018: 81%) of the Group’s total turnover.

During the year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 95% (2018: 94%) of
the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 86% (2018: 75%) of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BBMALRS

The significant related party transactions entered into by AREBAARFEIUNEABHZIIEN
the Group during the year set out in note 26 to the financial B3R R 5E26 - BIREAK BEIE 15 ERT

statements included transactions that constitute connected/ BRGNS MAEEEDRZERHE
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure TFETRAEERTE -

requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BEBREXS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had the REE2019F3A3THIEFE  AEEHK

following continuing connected transactions: FEEER ST

Tenancy Agreements ME W=

Name of landlords Term of lease agreements Monthly rent Annual rent

E Lt HEmRFEH ZAE: S ik

(HKS) (HK$)

(%) (B7m)

Leasing of storage property for use as open storage and service depot for the Group
HEGTRYEUREREENERERREBE
Cheer Crown Limited 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020 180,000 2,160,000

EHARRA

Leasing of residential properties and car parking spaces for use as quarter for the directors

HETEYERFENUAAEESHNEARN

Cheer Wealth International 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020 73,000 876,000
Development Limited

2 IRERERER AR

East Ascent Enterprises Limited 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020 3,800 45,600
RAGEARAA
Cheer Profit International 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020 3,800 45,600

Enterprise Limited

ENBEREXAERAR

Long Ascent Development Limited 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020 50,000 600,000
EAZERERAF
Healthy World Investment Limited ~ 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020 50,000 600,000
f2fER A /R AR
Total transaction amounts for the year ended 31 March 2019 4,327,200

HZE2019F3A31B L FENRZHEEE

Annual cap EEELR
For the year ended 31 March 2019 #EHZE20194F3A31BIFFE 4,327,200
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The rents paid by the Group to the above landlords were
determined on an arm’s length basis and reflected the
prevailing market rents at the time. The relevant tenancy
agreements were also entered into by the parties on normal
commercial terms.

Relationships with Connected Persons

As Mr. Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Mr. Lau Chun
Ka and Ms. Leung Lai So, each a director, and Ms. Lau Pui
Shan, a daughter of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So,
owned the beneficial interests in the above landlords, each of
the landlords above was therefore considered as a connected
person of the Company and hence the transactions referred
above constituted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Review of Continuing Connected Transactions

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company who have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company; (b) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (c) according to the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on
pages 69 to 70 in this annual report in accordance with rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions that did not constitute connected transactions
made during the year is disclosed in note 26 to the financial
statements.

MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2019, the market capitalisation of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$302 million
based on the total number of 1,680,000,000 issued shares of
the Company and the closing price of HK$0.18 per share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and as at the date of
this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Group
had complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
places where we operate in all material respects.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to the director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate
cover for the directors.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the
Company or by the Group after 31 March 2019 and up to the
date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

i

pwc

To the Shareholders of Sam Woo Construction Group
Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Sam Woo
Construction Group Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 195, which
comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2019;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B AR S

5 o R K 18
H=AREEBERDDRE

(REFEFHEZMA LN ERLA])

=R
ZHERFOAR

SMEEEERRAR (ATHBIER
ADREMBAR ATRBIERE]D
FIEMNEBAT195A MG AMBRE - &
SEE

. R2019F3A31HMGAEEERAE
xR

s HEZBALFEMGEEZERSER:

s BEZBALFENGRAEDREIRK:

B

s BEZHLFENFARERER:
&

« GAMBHRERNE REEDEH
BEWE -

HAWELR

BMRAE  ZEREVBERREBERS
SRR AEBEN(E BT BHRELELNE
EmP AR T 8 E&BM201963 431
HRSEMBERAREEEZALLFEN
BAVBKRERGARESRE WO EBR
ERECRRGEOOBRBREL AEE -

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA




74

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as

Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR S

MEETERE)

BFEE TR g E T S A

follows: e

C Accounting for construction contracts s BEASANGITRE

. Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant and o MW EREBHMEFAIEAFHLR
equipment R EE

Key Audit Matter
BRENSEE

Accounting for construction contracts

Refer to note 2.19 in the summary of significant
accounting policies, note 4(a) in the critical
accounting estimates and judgements and note 5
to the consolidated financial statements.
F2HERGTTHEMEMT2.19  &Ra M B mk
Bt iE4(a) B E G 5T (AT KA LA R M 5E5 »

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
derived revenue of HK$452,268,000 from
construction works. The related construction
contracts costs amounted to HK$420,092,000.

H E201963H31H ILFE - & & F452,268,000
IR ATIREEETEE - HEREANKA A
420,092,000/ 7T °

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised
over the period of individual contract by measuring
the progress towards complete satisfaction of
individual performance obligation. The Group
recognises revenue using either input method
or output method, with the selection of method
dependent upon which method best depicts the
way the Group satisfies its performance obligation
over time. The decision as to which method to
use is made for each contract, after considering
the nature of the goods or services that the Group
promised to transfer to the customer.
BESHANBARBTEESITERBITENBELAR
BHHEETENEANHERNTUAER - ESEHEAR
NES B HEBRIBA - FIEAREREURRHES
FrmEER ESERREBITRAOEBNS
X - HEEHNTHRAMNELSEZZELERE EEBEK
HEHBELAEPHNERIRBHIEERRE -

SR FFH

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ES AR ERERETEE

BEANNETERE

Our procedures in relation to management’s
accounting for measuring the progress towards
satisfaction of the performance obligation, revenue,
cost and profit recognition of construction contracts
included:

HEEEHAERITRABENEE BESONK
A REARHMNBERNGARE  HMERKRNEFE
e

= We assessed and tested the key controls over
the project costs budgetary process.
= BMEFHRAREENATEERETNEER

5
70
%1 °

= We selected, on a sample basis, contracts
to examine management’'s budget of the
cost component, such as costs of materials,
subcontracting fees and labour costs, etc. We
compared the budgeted cost components to
supporting documents including but not limited
to price quotation and rate of labour costs.

- BIMERELSAONEREREBEMEAER - 5
BPEARBBEHRANEXNRNEXTHOTEE - HM
TR ARAKB Y B EZXH TR Y - &
FEEETRNRESREBERAERE -

- We inspected material construction contracts
of the Group for agreed contract sum and
variations, if any.

- BMERR BEEENERBRESHNNHESR
THEREE (WEF) -

ZNEEEBBRAA

75



76

Independent Auditor’s Report

1B M AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

Under input method, revenue on construction
contracts is recognised with reference to actual
costs incurred by the Group up to the end of
the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract. Under output
method, revenue recognition is based on the
stage of completion of contract activity by
reference to work performed at balance sheet
date as a percentage of the total contract value.

BEBEHRALE BEASONKARZEEZHEH
R BEEEERELNRNEZTANMEKAEE
B DLEMER - REBHEE  WABRASERE
PEGEERAMETIRGEESANBEBEOLBES
HEEE e TREER o

Recognition of revenue, cost and profit on
contracts requires significant judgement and
estimates in (a) measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation; (b) estimating total budgeted costs
and profit margin for each projects; and (c)
estimating the expected recovery of costs arising
from variation of work scope during the contracts
periods. We focused on this area as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the revenue and
the related costs to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the significance of the
judgement and estimates involved.

BHRBBA ~ BOAR s MR R Z ()t BEH T
PRIIBHNEBNER D)6 0NEEKR
BERMBEE : Refhsre0PERETEHSRE
MELMKARELT Y - ARKRARBERASE &
SEEEMBERRNEZ LA RE P R H E &
e EEN  HARERBEREFTETEMEIN
It SO0 o

MEETSERE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ESNAEERERETSE

- We tested, on sample basis, actual costs
incurred to supporting documents including, but
no limited to, suppliers’ invoices and labour cost

allocation schedules.

= BPERBERX M (BRETRR BRI E
EMBTIRASER) HOEBNERRAET

A

For projects where revenue was recognised using

input method:
HRA A A EERBANIERmE

- We compared the actual costs incurred
against the budgeted costs to understand the
status of the project completion, identified
whether there are any cost overruns or
variation of work scope. Where applicable,
we checked these changes from the original

work scope to supporting documents.

- BAEEHRSNERKABBERAETLR -
ATHBERTIMNR  EERSFAEEAKAE
XRTEBENEE - HERNER - BHAISR

BHFRR TERE 2 S FTNEE M -

- We compared the project’ s stage of
completion under input method with quantity
surveyors’ certificates at period end, where
available. We inquired management in respect
of significant differences noted and checked

such differences to supporting documents.

- WMIEBBHRN TR RABAERE - G EE
BEHNETHTIREBETLER - RS HHA
BENBAZEMNEEERIEN  YRIFER

XHmEREER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

—E—AFER

Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR S

MEETERE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESOAEERRETSE

Furthermore, for projects where revenue was
recognised using output method:
BESN - R AR AR B ANEEMS -

- We checked the completion status specified in
quantity surveyors’ certificates and compared
the status/amount with revenue recognised.

- BMERE TR ASMEBRAS R TR T IR
WHKERMKR £EEEEBERMAELR -

- We assessed the competence and independence
of external quantity surveyors involves in
selected contract.

- BAFE2EMEL ZEONINETRAISMZ
EERADE VA c

- We discussed with the project managers
about the status of the projects, to identify
any variations of contracts and claims, and
to obtain explanations from management for
fluctuations in margins and changes in budget
as well as the expected recovery of variations.

- HADHER KRN RERRR - UBHESA
WEERPR > URABERES REZFHRE
D WRESNEERFERERHA

- We inspected the correspondence with
customers and sub-contractors, on a sample
basis, for corroboration of management
explanations.

- BMEMEREEETP Ry BE 2 M@ - A
EEEREN S -

We found the judgement and estimates adopted
by management in determining the revenue, cost
and profit recognition of construction contracts are
supported by available evidence.
HMRAEEEEETEESABUA -~ BN s M
REFFTEBHE RARAN G T HEERAEE
X e

ZNEEEBBRAA
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1B M AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
plant and equipment

Refer to note 2.6 in the summary of significant
accounting policies, note 4(b) in the critical
accounting estimates and judgements and note 13
to the consolidated financial statements.
BLHERGHAREBENT2.6 - REMBHRERW
it4b)EZ G FHEE R HE A K13 -

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying value of plant
and equipment amounted to HK$563,615,000, with
depreciation charge for the year ended 31 March
2019 amounted to HK$24,699,000.
MR2019F3A31H MM ERBEZHEREAER
563,615,000/ ;LM & Z£2019F3A31 B L FE 27
E X 524,699,000 7T °

MEETSERE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ES AR ERERETSE

R BRENGE I ERFHRRRGRER

Our procedures in relation to management’s estimated
useful lives and residual values of plant and equipment
included:

HEREH MM R REN LA AFARFIRERE -
BPERBROREF B

= We discussed with the management on trends
of prevailing market values for equivalent aged
assets for each category of plant and equipment
and the value of scrap metal at year end. We
performed independent research to corroborate
with the management’s assessment.

= HAAIE BT IE B A & R & 2R e Y R S AR iR
BEEMNRITHEEL MEHRFRNEE - HM
BETELARTAZTEERENMG -

- We sample checked market quotations and
recent scrap metal price to assess whether
the residual value of each type of plant and
equipment is within reasonable range.

= BB A T 35 R (B % R 8 60 3 HA (B A% LA T
ERBERBEREORREEBESIEHE -

- We reviewed the sensitivity analysis performed
by management on financial impact of
fluctuation on residual values to depreciation.

= BHMEEREREHNMREBERDEFTENTH
T EETHREME ST -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSBE

Management estimates useful lives of the plant and
equipment by reference to the industry practice,
expected usage of the assets, expected repair
and maintenance, and if there is any technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes
or improvements in the market. Residual values of
the plant and equipment are determined based on
prevailing market values for equivalent aged assets
taking into account the condition of the relevant
assets or the value of scrap metal. Depreciation
expense would be significantly affected by the
useful lives and residual values of the plant and
equipment as estimated by management.
EREN2ETEEN EERPRSE BHEES
MRE  UAREBBEMETSE AN EEHN
R R EER - (AR R EH A B F
H o MM ERENRIREEDRBEARNSRIREE
WIRITHEERE - Wit kB REENRTKERD
BE - EIPERT AT S 2% 8 10 mT {2 3 4F A I )
HREEHHITEEREEATE -

We focused on this area as a key audit matter
due to the fact that the carrying value of plant

Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR S

MEETERE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESFOAEERRETSE

We assessed useful lives by benchmarking to
other industry players and performing research
to consider whether there are changes or
improvements in the market which could
potentially result in technical or commercial
obsolescence. Furthermore, we tested, on
a sample basis, usage of the assets among
different construction projects and expenditure
of repair and maintenance.

FAPT DA EL fth 35 SR ) ELE STk ] {58 PR F B RGE AT A
RUERESF M5 E (L kB Em Al e B Bl
NEESEBE o HI - BB HMERF AR &2

LEANEEREARBERRENRAX -

We tested, on a sample basis, whether
additions to plant and equipment have been
recorded in proper categories with relevant
useful lives and residual values, for the
calculation of depreciation.

METRITE - RMEMEIFA R RRENRE
RARCHEREENEB AR FEHRRAEER
Al e

and equipment represented 95% of non-current  We found the judgement and estimates in determining

assets and 66% of total assets of the Group, and  the useful lives and residual values of plant and
significant judgement is involved in determining equipment are supported by available evidence.

BFIRE - REEEWERENAIERFHERSRER
& A0 H B S AR =B R BRI

the useful lives and residual values of plant and
equipment.

HAERERENREEG ESEFTDEEN
95% % #8 & EE H166% LA I 7E 58 FE M4k S R A B0 AT
ERFHRHERTREZHE  RARESER
B FEMB TN UL S -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

B AR S
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£
B

RREEBESENNBRE

Nt
pilll]
N\

ZE®

B Bl
Hio

RBMRETGEYBRRAENEE

BFNER  EHREMBHRREBRES
PNEE R EF R M G R E KR
POLES A EARE  YHABERRMER
R BE RS - BAUERB T (EAEER)
BERPWER - BRI 2R RERIEE
B &Y AT EARE AR REM
HA LB ESRAEERMEE - SERE
ERKFHRE  BETRIBRR(EE
EAERDETHE ERX —BEAER
Bt FE R AR RE 3E 3R o A RRIRUM AJ A fa R
FFEkERRRSIE - IR A EBHEMEBX
ERERAETERAMBHRREREK
BEREMBHREAMELNEERTE - I
B8 Y 88 AR RO AT AR IE K -

ERBCEABEERDETEINBRE
FoRMERTERHE R TEXRE
SERETE - FAITT

o ERIAMFEHERKFFELE RN B
FAMBRMREFAEERNBRBMLD
Rk - BRETRATTETIZF ARY
B AR ER TR MNEE [
BHRE EREMERMER-
MRS RER BE &
BER ERRM - HEERAE
2z £ Bt KRB ERFEM
BH M ERHEREL AR R SRR
BERBEEBRMEBME KRN RR
pul=ol e

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

81



82

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT BB M BRRRIENSE
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (&)
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meZHEBRER

For the year ended 31st March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H LEFE

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT FAT
Revenue from contracts with customers EEASHBKA 5 452,268 518,479
Cost of sales i B A 7 (447,886) (474,434)
Gross profit E 7 4,382 44,045
Other (loss)/gain, net Hb (E518)
Yo g — 58 6 (1,000) 5,788
Other income H A Y A 6 484 19,038
Administrative expenses 1T B i 7 (37,503) (61,405)
Impairment losses on retention receivables JEWIRE & 7 FE/KRE  7(d) (25,009) =
Operating (loss)/profit e (EE) R A (58,646) 7,466
Finance income B 75 U A 8 3,481 2,637
Finance costs Bt 7% & F 8 (2,332) (4,478)
Finance income/(costs), net B A S (BER)—
R 8 1,149 (1,841)
(Loss)/profit before income tax KBTS F A (B18)
i 7 (57,497) 5,625
Income tax credit/(expense) i8R, () 9 7,127 (106)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BE),mH (50,370) 5,519
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity RARERFTE A
holders of the Company e (B518) /i A (50,370) 5,619
Other comprehensive income H 2wl A
Items that may be subsequently AREREEER 7 HE
reclassified to profit or loss B HH
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AIEHESmERE
financial assets 2Rl ERE - 770
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair & A FEF AL MEE
value through other comprehensive WAZEREEZRA
income FEKE 400 =
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FEE2E(BR) A
for the year 4@ (49,970) 6,289
Total comprehensive (loss)/income RARE=IFE A
attributable to equity holders of the 2w (EE),
Company WA 458 (49,970) 6,289
2019 2018
HK cents HK cents
AL Al
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREXR (BER) /BF 11 (3.00) 0.33
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SREE (BR) /8F 11 (3.00) 0.33
The notes on pages 89 to 195 are an integral part of these F8OE195BE v M At Eira M EkEK 248

consolidated financial statements. K 2B 5
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Assets

Non-current assets

Plant and equipment

Deferred income tax assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Deposits and prepayments

Current assets
Trade and retention receivables
Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables
Contract assets
Amounts due from customers
for contract works
Income tax recoverable
Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

The notes on pages 89 to 195 are an integral part

consolidated financial statements.

SE—AFER o

Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

As at 31st March 2019 /20193 A31H

BE

FRBEE

W & R
EEPTEHEE
AfhESREE
BAFEFARMEE
WAZEREE
Be MIEN KA

REBEE

EWE ZRERRE
Be  BNRER

H Al B WA
BHEE
BUEEFEHNTRESR

] Yy B Fr 15 3%

SRS RITAEER
Be R FEY

BEEHME
i

EEEN
ffé 88

of these

Note
B 7

13
19
14

14
15

15
16

16

17
17

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TET
563,615 575,752
8,547 9,208
- 20,520
20,920 =
2,098 2,905
595,180 608,385
45,858 121,261
5,852 3,905
8,616 -
- 231
2,389 600
3,075 3,020
196,964 256,401
262,754 385,418
857,934 993,803
4,200 4,200
621,716 681,520
625,916 685,720

FRIE1BAE ZMERUIFHRA B HRKR 2E

BB

ZNEEEBBRAA
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meEERER

As at 31st March 2019 /201993 A31H

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings — non-current portion
Deferred income tax liabilities
Amount due to a director

Current liabilities
Trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables

Contract liabilities

Amounts due to customers for
contract works

Borrowings — current portion

Income tax payable

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 195
were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 June 2019 and

were signed on its behalf.

Lau Chun Ming

2|4x 8
Director

EF

The notes on pages 89 to 195 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

Note

B 5
=L
FRBEME
B — ERBEHD 22
BEEMEMAE 19
JER—RESFHIA 21, 26(d)

REBAE
ENEZRERREE 20
& R R IR B EL A FE A

Q] 20
AHBaE 16
[ENEFAHNTIRESE

16
fa sk — MmEILD 22
FEfH TS Ft
EEAE
EEREEHAE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEX TET
3,400 15,904
53,062 59,357
3,075 3,020
59,537 78,281
34,833 53,432
9,921 8,943
34,311 —

- 97,866
92,498 66,207
918 4,354
172,481 229,802
28208 308,083
857,934 993,803

FB8AE 1958 L ix A B R FRE 1KR20194F
6H21BEZES S E WA T ALR

REE
Leung Lai So
REFH
Director
BE

FBIE195H 2 MBI TR E M MK

ZHRER S ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #£201943A31H L F/E

Financial

Available- assets

for-sale at fair value

financial through other

Share Share assets  comprehensive Other Retained

capital premium reserve  income reserve reserves earnings Total

e RATEFA

¢HEE  Ht2EMAZ
B& RiaE i SREERE Rt REEA @it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TR TiEn TiEx TiEn TiEx
Balance at 1 April 2017 ROOITEAR1B 2 5 4,200 194,087 - - 10,500 487,444 696,231

Comprehensive income ~ 2EUA
Profit for the year EFET - - - - - 5,519 5,519

Fair value gains on available- [t ES R EE 2

for-sale financial assets ATk = = 770 - - - 770
Total comprehensive EERENAEE

income for the year - - 770 - - 5519 6,289
Contribution by and BEANLERBEELY

distribution to owners 2k

Final dividends relating to ~ BRBIE 2201743731 H

the year ended 31 March ~ |FEEHREAR S

2017 - - - - - (16,800) (16,800)
Balance at 31 March 2018 12018%3A31H 2 &8 4200 194,087 770 - 10,500 476,163 685,720
Balance at 31 March 2018 12018437310 2 &4 (i

as originally presented RE25) 4,200 194,087 770 - 10,500 476,163 685,720
Changes in accounting EHRREE (H3k22)

policies (note 2.2) - - (770) 770 - (9,834) (9,834)
Balance at 1 April 2018as  R2018%4F 1R 28

restated (5%3)) 4,200 194,087 - 770 10,500 466,329 675,886
Comprehensive income ~ 2EKA
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (50,370) (50,370)
Fair value gains on financial -~ ZATFEGAZf2ARA

assets at far value through 2 4 BBEZ ATE

other comprehensive income Mz - - - 400 - - 400
Total comprehensive EEXEFRAR

loss for the year - - - 400 - (50,370) (49,970)
Balance at 31 March 2019 MO019%3A31A 2 24 4,200 194,087 - 1,170 10,500 415,950 625916

FBIOE195H 2 MBI TR A M MK
ZHERED ©

The notes on pages 89 to 195 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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= Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
llv_\éIﬁﬁiﬁiﬂ%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3A31HILF/E

38

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FHET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities RERETEHH
ReRE
Net cash (used in)/generated from weEE (FTA) /s
operations N4 F5E 25(a) (62,552) 56,886
Interest paid 2R E (1,486) (2,783)
Interest received 2 U B 3,481 2,637
Interest element of finance lease payments Ft& 8 & 2 1Y
ME2ED 8 (791) (1,532)
Restricted bank balances PR I $R 1T A5 R 17 (55) 17,844
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNBEFNEH (1,789) (6,297)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mesEe (FrA)
operating activities FBREFE (63,192) 66,755
Cash flows from investing activities REREZHH
HeRE
Purchase of plant and equipment BE MW R EE (13,562) (1,157)
Proceeds from sales of plant and MR N B
equipment B8 218 25(b) - 37,749
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (FrA)
investing activities FBREFE (13,562) 36,592
Cash flows from financing activities REBMEIBHNRS
RE
Capital element of finance lease payments @t & 8 & 3k 4] & 7
zi52) (17,125) (24,936)
Drawdown of long-term bank loans EREHETER - 559
Repayment of long-term bank loans BERHIETER (18,932) (38,386)
Drawdown of short-term bank loans IR SR TTE 193,624 36,628
Repayment of short-term bank loans BEEHRITER (140,250) (151,954)
Dividend paid i) - (16,800)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZEFTE, (FTH)
financing activities Re®®E 17,317 (194,889)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRESZEY
equivalents m (59,437) (91,542)
Cash and cash equivalents at REGHIRES K
beginning of the year HSEEY 256,401 347,943
Cash and cash equivalents at RERNEESRRSE
end of the year £EY 17 196,964 256,401

The notes on pages 89 to 195 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

®  Aunwal Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in foundation works and ancillary services in
Hong Kong and Macau.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for the financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income (note
14) which are stated at fair value.

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

e P RRME

—mEs

=MEEEBARAR ([ARR]])
RIBERS S EMNE2E(RRNE)
(19615 ABI3 » 47 & RIEETAN)
EFHREHBFMNLAEREER
NA] o AR A A 9 S R H AL
PACricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands °

RRARRREERRAT - MENEB
RE (MBI AEE]) TEREE
FORPIE = E TR LK BART -

ARRZBOREEBERZ A
[RARER LM -

B BRI - A M |RRIAE
(AT 25 -

EREFBREE

REU SR A MBERRARANE
ZEHBREARTX - KR EHEH
I REBRRRAABE2NFE—
HEERUEHA -

21 IfREBUEAE

AEBZ AP BHRRTIR
EEEGHMAG((HEe
FHEDAE |) PR 2 PR 8
REAWBZREE ([EE
MR EER ) RFEED
Fe22EH/ERAIGDI 2R
TS - AEBZIRE T
BRAESEKAE RS - HE
mAFER ARMBEEKA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The Group has adopted the following new

standards and amendments for the first time for

their financial reporting period commencing 1

April 2018:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle

HKAS 40 (Amendment) Transfers of Investment
Property

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

HKFRS 4 (Amendment) Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 (Amendment) Clarification to HKFRS 15

HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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2.1

®  Aunwal Report 2019

RBERE(E)

RIBF B M HRE L RR
MBHRRBERE THAR
SitfhEt - EERERERE
SEEFBRRKEINEFH
HIE - 8RB % HE HBE
o B BBRER R EER
BMBHRREEATZENE
B 7O B AR AT R -

@@  AEEEFRNE)FET
RAEEETER

A& B P §2018F4A81H
A 1A B B 7% R 25 B ) B R R
LA T #E] 22 B RAB AT

BEUBREEY 2014EZ20165EH
ba 1] BRNBREEN
Ry
BREIEN  BRREANE
F40% (B3]
ERUBREEN HROIARSZAE
AT kitg
BEUMBREEL HEAHBREER
EEACH)) EIRRBANER
BREBREE
20RERIA
BANBREEN SRMIA
0

EANBREEL REANMA
F15%

BEUBREEY FREBALSEL
5% (B31)  E1RCER
BE(EARNE  NERGRBIRE
fEREZE9)

$00%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (Continued)

The Group had to change its accounting policies
and make certain adjustments following the
adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15. Other
amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2018
and have not been early adopted:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvement to HKFRSs
2015-2017 cycle @

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement "

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definitions of Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation ("

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
HKFRS 16 Leases "
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts ©

HK (IFRIC) - Interpretation 23  Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

e P RRME

2 BEREHBEBEE)

2.1

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA
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@  AEEERAFET
RASIERTER (&)

RN BB 75 3R & 2R 5B
O R BB EmEERE
155518 - AEETENRES
#ﬁ RMIENE THE - £
L E 4t {2 5T 35 LA 517 B ) e 2R
m%%wﬂﬁﬂwa FEE

TEHERNSRRABES
BEATE

(b) A E KR EIFT
FTRAEIEETERY

AT ¥ra] 22 B RAEET B 8
5 B 201854 418 3
2 1B B R B B E R &
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BAUHALEE 0155 E0ITERNER
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)
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EREvA ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted by the Group (Continued)

U Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

@ Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

@ Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

@ Effective date to be determined.

None of these HKFRSs is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except for the following:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised
on the consolidated balance sheet, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEME(E)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Impact

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for
the accounting treatment of leases and all
non-current leases, including future operating
lease commitments, must be recognised in
the form of an asset (for the right of use) and
a financial liability (for the payment obligation).
Short-term leases of less than twelve months
and leases of low-value assets are exempt from
the reporting obligation. The new standard will
therefore result in an increase in assets and
financial liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet. Operating expenses under otherwise
identical circumstances will decrease, and
depreciation, amortisation and interest expense
will increase. It is expected that certain portion of
these lease commitments will be required to be
recognised in the statement of balance sheet as
right of use assets and lease liabilities.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments approximately
HK$12,468,000, see note 23(b). Of these
commitments, HK$1,859,000 relate to short-term
leases which will be recognised on a straight-line
basis as expenses in profit or loss.

For the remaining lease commitments, the
Group expects to recognise right-of-use assets
of HK$9,961,000 on 1 April 2019 and lease
liabilities of HK$9,828,000 (after adjustments for
prepayments recognised as at 31 March 2019).
Overall net current assets will be approximately
HK$6,900,000 lower due to the presentation of a
portion of the liabilities as a current liability.

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

(b) AN E KRB ET
I RAEETER ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that are expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on any foreseeable future
transactions.

Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements on 1
April 2018.

(a) Impact on the consolidated financial
Statements

As explained in Notes 2.2(b) and 2.2(c) below,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 were generally adopted
without restating comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising
from the new impairment rules are therefore not
reflected in the restated consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 March 2018, but are recognised
in the opening consolidated balance sheet on 1
April 2018.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(a) Impact on the consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

The following tables show the adjustments

recognised for each individual line item. Line

items that were not affected by the changes
have not been included. The adjustments are

explained in more details by standard below.

Consolidated balance sheet (extract)

Non-current assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Deferred income tax asset

Current assets

Contract assets

Amounts due from customers
for contract works

Equity

Retained earnings

Available-for-sale financial assets reserve

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve

Current liabilities
Income tax payable
Contract liabilities

e P RRME

2 EXETBRBE (&)

Amounts due to customers for contract works B ZF A4 T2 4%

22 DETREREEFE (E)
(a) HEEHBRENZ
Z(E)
TREYESEEBMYIIEE
BROARE  KXEBFLE
ZEHNEE TEBENTE -
T 51 % Bl & ¥ 41 i A7 72
ﬁEk °
31 March
2018
As 1 April
originally 2018
GABEABR(BE) presented HKFRS9  HKFRS 15 Restated
20185 RN BAHHK 12018%
3A31H HEER REEA 418
(mEREE250) B 155 (ms75))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr THr TAT TEr
FRBEE
e HEE 20,520 (20,520) = -
BAYEFAELZE
WAZeRERE - 20,520 = 20,520
ERFEHEE 9,208 = 2,462 11,670
RBEE
alEE - - 231 231
BREFANIREHE
231 - (231) _
B
REBH 476,163 - (9,834) 466,329
MHELEeREERE 770 (770) = -
BAFEGAEZA
WAZeREERE - 770 = 770
RBEE
EFEHR 4,354 - 519 4,873
AMEE - - 109,643 109,643
97,866 = (97,866) -
SE—AFEER o =NRFEEFERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39
that relates to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge

accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
from 1 April 2018 resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The new accounting policies are set

out in Note 2.8 below.

In accordance with the transitional provision
in HKFRS 9 (7.2.15) and (7.2.26), comparative

figures have not been restated.

Impact

(i) Classification and measurement of

financial instruments

On 1 April 2018 (the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has
assessed which business models apply to
the financial assets held by the Group and
has classified its financial instruments into the

appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2  Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 E@EFEEREH (&)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Impact (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of
financial instruments (Continued)

The Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income for all its available-for-sale
financial assets, because these measurements
are held as long-term strategic investments
that are not expected to be sold in the short
to medium term. The Group has used modified
retrospective approach while adopting HKFRS
9, without restating comparative information. As
a result, available-for-sale financial assets with a
fair value of HK$20,520,000 at 31 March 2018
were reclassified from available-for-sale financial
assets to financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) on 1 April
2018.

The reclassification would not change the fair
value measurement method of these long term
financial assets at FVOCI from available-for-sale
financial assets except for any gains or losses
realised upon sale will no longer be transferred
to the profit and loss account, but instead
reclassified from “Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income reserve”
(previously named as “available-for-sale financial
assets reserve”) to “Retained earnings”. As
reclassifications were made with modified
retrospective approach, available-for-sales
financial assets reserve of HK$770,000 at 31
March 2018 were reclassified from financial
assets at FVOCI reserve on 1 April 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Impact (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of

financial instruments (Continued)

In addition, there will be no more impairment
losses required to be charged to the profit and
loss account for equity investments at FVOCI

under the new guidance.

(if) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three types of financial assets that
are subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit

loss model:

o trade and retention receivables
o other receivables

° contract assets

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these

classes of assets.

While cash in bank, restricted bank balances and
deposits and other receivables are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was not material (note

3.1(c)).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Impact (Continued)

(if) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade and retention receivables, other
receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected losses allowance
for all trade and retention receivables, other
receivables and contract assets. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade and retention
receivables, other receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based on common
credit risk characteristics and the aging of the
trade and retention receivables and contract
assets, and assessed collectively or individually
for likelihood of recovery. They are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery.

The Group has assessed the expected credit loss
model applied to trade and retention receivables,
other receivables and contract assets as
at 1 April 2018. The change in impairment
methodologies has no significant impact of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and
the opening loss allowance is not restated in this
respect.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers from 1 April 2018
which resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements. The new
accounting policies are set out in note 2.19.

In accordance with the modified retrospective
approach in HKFRS 15, comparative figures have
not been restated.

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15 is
shown as follows:

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Previously, contract balances relating to
construction contracts in progress were
presented in the consolidated balance sheet
under “amounts due from/(to) customers for
contract work”, “trade and retention receivables”
or “trade and retention payables” respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBME (£)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2  Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 E@EFEEREH (&)

(c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. If the Group recognises the related
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration for the promised goods and
services in the contract, then the entitlement
to consideration is classified as a contract
asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than
a payable, is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due,
before the Group recognises the related revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

(Continued)

Reclassifications were made as at 1 April 2018 to

be consistent with the terminology under HKFRS

15:

Consolidated balance sheet
(extract)

Deferred income tax assets

Amounts due from customers for
contract works

Contract assets

Reserves

Amounts due to customers for
contract work

Contract liabilities

Income tax payable

2 EXETBRBE (&)

2.2

At

31 March

2018

mEEEEBER  asoriginally

(HE) presented

20184F

3A31H

(MEREZ7)

HK$'000

FHT

BEXEFREHEE 9,208
EHEPEHTIE

G- 231

BRAEE =

5 681,520
ENEFPEHIRE

T 97,866

SHEE =

EANEEIREE 4,354

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has decreased the
comprehensive income for HK$9,834,000 to
the consolidated income statement and has

no impact to the net cash flow from operating,

investing and financing activities on the

consolidated statement of cash flows.
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RNE B 720184
s A 4R1H
F15He T8 (&&7)
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT

2,462 11,670

(231) -

231 231

(9,834) 671,686
(97,866) -
109,643 109,643
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBME (£)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2  Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 E@EFEEREH (&)
(c)  HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with (c)  BBUBHREERIES

Customers (continued) HEFEFTRA ()
HAEBER2018F481H
MREBRBAHTEREHT
BZHBRENT

The impact of the Group’s retained earnings and
its related impact on tax, as at 1 April 2018 is as
follows:

2018
HK$’000
THER
Closing retained earnings as at R2018F3 431 H A HIR
31 March 2018 RE AN 476,163
Recognition of revenue and cost over time e 2 B 0 1 e 2 LA A
(BN (11,777)
Tax effect T8 1,943
Adjustment to retained earnings from M2019F4 A1 B H#
adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2019 BB SRS ER
F155 M ERE AR
1E A & (9,834)
Opening retained earnings as at 1 April 2018 120184 A1 B R E T
REBBFH 466,329

Reclassifications were made as at 1 April 2018
to be consistent with the terminology used under
HKFRS 15.

Contract assets recognised in relation to
construction contracts were previously presented
as amounts due from customers for contract
works.

Contract liabilities for the progress billing
recognised in relation to construction contracts
were previously presented as amounts due to
customers for contract work.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE(Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 EBETEEKEH(E)
(d)  Disclosure of the estimated impact on the (@)  ARE2018F4H1H
amounts reported in respect of the year RN BB HREE
ended 31 March 2019 as a result of the BIE155E » B ER R
adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018 201943H31H I F /&

FrEHE ARG A

The following tables summarise the estimated T & Bl B BB B S R
impact of adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s LB EISH B AEBEHE
consolidated financial statements for the year 20193 A31 H It FERNEGE
ended 31 March 2019, by comparing the MR MG E - 5%
amounts reported under HKFRS 15 in these EGREMBEMERPEBYS
consolidated financial statements with estimates HEBIFEISRTERN S
of the hypothetical amounts that would have HER BT ERE185R KR
been recognised under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 BB G ERF1RERA
if those superseded standards had continued to AR 2R 2 (T (W sz FHER
apply to 2018 instead of HKFRS 15. These tables RAZ A= 4 48 i FA 72 20184F i
show only those line items impacted by the JEEAE BT IEREEDE
adoption of HKFRS 15: 1555 ) #ETTLLER © L FHIRIE

Y| ERNE B R E L
AIE155% M X Be A5 18
B :
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAGHERBE (F)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 EETEHEKEH (E&)

(d)  Disclosure of the estimated impact on the (@)  HARE2018F4A1H
amounts reported in respect of the year RNE B R EE
ended 31 March 2019 as a result of the BIE155 » A RREI 2R
adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018 201943531 H 1FF /&
(continued) FTE % B e e

(#&)
At
31 March
2019 At
without the Effects of 31 March

Consolidated balance sheet REBESRMEX adoption of adoption of 2019

(extract) (BE) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 as reported

R20194F
3A31H

(BEFEH RPB BT R2019%F
ERMBERE REERFE5 3H31H
%R $155%) Eege (M2 3R)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT TERT TERT
Deferred income tax assets EIEFFEMEE 7,882 665 8,547
Amounts due from customers for BREFEEH
contract works TEeH 11,547 (11,547) -
Contract assets BNEE - 8,616 8,616
Reserves fE 628,362 (6,646) 621,716
Amounts due to customers for EREEAH
contract work IHR&%E 29,967 (29,967) -
Contract liabilities EHAEE - 34,311 34,311
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFMERERE 53,026 36 53,062
For the year
ended 31
March 2019 For the year
without the Effects of ended 31
Consolidated statement of REEEWER  adoption of adoption of March 2019
comprehensive income (extract) (BE) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 as reported
HZ2019F
3A31H R
LEE EABE BZE2019F
(3 % B 40 & 2R 3H31H
ERUERE F15% 2 LFE
% B 5815%%) 4 (N2R)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET TET FTET
Revenue from contract with customers & F & £ A 368,552 83,716 452,268
Cost of sales 8 & AR (368,672) (79,214) (447,886)
Income tax Frig &t 8,441 (1,314) 7,127
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Principles of consolidation

2.3.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(note 2.3.2).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Principles of consolidation (Continued) 2.3 HAEARZER(#E)

2.3.2 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business, the equity interests issued
by the group, the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and the fair value of any
pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3  Principles of consolidation (Continued)

2.3.2 Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss

as a bargain purchase.

2.3.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the

investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXREFBRBE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4  Segment reporting 2.4 DERE
Operating segments are reported in a manner a2 A A EEE
consistent with the internal reporting provided BRERRERBERILRE
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief B 75 = — B o YEH SR B AR
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for ENHITESAEELER
allocating resources and assessing performance XE BELERERKATMG
of the operating segments, has been identified BEDEBRIA ©
as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2.5  Foreign currency translation 2.5 HMNERER

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HKS$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

= assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation
of cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

= all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as in other comprehensive
income.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Plant and equipment (Continued) 2.6 MW KRERE(E)

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount of the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.7).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

(@) Classification

From 1 April 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement

categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at
FVOCI; and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and

losses will be recorded in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.8  Financial assets (Continued) 28 SmMEEE)

(a) Classification (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
the assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction cost of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
its debt instruments as amortised cost.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXREBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.8  Financial assets (Continued) 28 SmMEEE)
(d)  Impairment (@  JsE
The Group’s financial assets measured at REEZREENTFTEN S

amortised cost are subject to HKFRS 9’s new
expected credit loss model. The Group assesses
on a forward looking basis where the expected
credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1(c) set
out the details on how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. The provision
matrix is determined based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of
the contract assets and trade receivables with
similar credit risk characteristics and is adjusted
for forward looking estimates. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Impairment on other receivables is assessed
on a 12-month expected credit losses. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivables
has occurred since initial recognition, then the
impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8  Financial assets (Continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 March

2018

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively,
but has elected not to restate comparative
information. As a result, the comparative
information provided continues to be accounted
for in accordance with the Group’s previous

accounting policy.

Until 31 March 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following categories:
loans and receivables and available-for-sale

investments.

The classification determined on the purpose
for which the investments were acquired.
Management determined the classification of

its investments at initial recognition and,

case of assets classified as held-to-maturity,
re-evaluated this designation at the end of each

reporting period.

(i) Recognition and measurement

The measurement at initial recognition did not
change the adoption of HKFRS 9, see description

above.

Subsequent to the initial recognition,

and receivables were subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.8  Financial assets (Continued) 28 SmMEEE)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

(if) Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting
period whether there was objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets was
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets was impaired and impairment losses were
incurred only if there was objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
had an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that could be reliably estimated.

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the
loss was measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that had not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset was reduced and the amount of the
loss was recognised in profit or loss. If a loan
or held-to-maturity investment had a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss was the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the Group could measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8  Financial assets (Continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 March

2018 (Continued)

(if) Impairment (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreased and the decrease
could be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment

loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Assets classified as available for sale financial

assets

If there is objective evidence of impairment for
FVOCI, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit
or loss — is removed from equity and recognised

in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that
were recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss in a subsequent period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases in a subsequent
period and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment

loss is reversed through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.

Leased assets

The Group leases certain machinery and
equipment. Leases of machinery and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership, are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the
fair value of the leased machinery and equipment
and the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other short-term
and other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The machinery and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of
the useful life of the asset and the lease term.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

213

Trade and retention receivables, and deposits
and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. They are
generally due for settlement within 90 days and
therefore are all classified as current. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and retention receivables, and deposits
and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of the unconditional consideration
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair
value. The Group holds the trade receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

See Note 15 for further information about the
Group’s accounting for trade and retention
receivables and deposits and other receivables,
and Note 2.8(d) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the

issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

Trade and retention payables, and other payables

Trade and retention payables are obligations
to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and retention payables, and other
payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax 2.18 BNEf KR EFTSH

The income tax expense or credit for the year
is the tax payable on the current year’'s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences

and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

BEREHBEBEE)

2.19 Revenue recognition 219 AR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. Revenue is recognised when
goods are transferred or services are rendered to
the customer.

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, service may
provide over time or at a point in time. Service is
provided over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer; or

° creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

o does not create an asset with an

alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

If service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
asset.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If the Group expects the reference to progress
certificates issued by the customers, with
additional adjustments where necessary, depicts
the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services promised to customers
for individual projects, the Group satisfies the
performance obligation over time and therefore,
recognises revenue over time in accordance
with the output method for measuring progress.
Under output method, revenue recognition
is based on the stage of completion of the
contracts, provided that the stage of contract
completion and the gross billing value of
contracting work can be measured reliably. The
stage of completion of a contract is established
by reference to the construction works certified
by independent surveyors.

If construction projects have no alternative use
to the Group contractually and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the customers
for performance completed to date, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation over time
and therefore, recognises revenue over time in
accordance with the input method for measuring
progress. Under input method, revenue on
construction contracts is recognised based on
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation, by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs
for each contract.

When the outcome of a contract cannot be
estimated reliably, foundation work and ancillary
service is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued) 219 WAMER(E)

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in supply and foundation
work and ancillary service to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for the services that
the Group has transferred to a customer. In
addition, incremental costs incurred to obtain
a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised
as contract assets and subsequently amortised
when the related revenue is recognised.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment
under the same approach adopted for
impairment assessment of financial assets carried
at amortised cost.

A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to
render the services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration from the
customer. A contract liability is recognised by the
Group when the customer pays consideration in
advance before the Group renders the service to
the customer. Contract liabilities mainly included
the advance payments received for provision of
foundation work and ancillary services.

On the consolidated balance sheet, the Group
reports the net contract position for each
contract as either an asset or a liability. A
contract asset represents an asset where costs
incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings; a contract
liability represents a liability where the opposite is
the case.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans and
receivables is recognised using the original

effective interest rate.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not recognised

until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution plans
and pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate
the employment of current employees without
possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than twelve
months after balance sheet date are discounted
to present value.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22

2.23

2.24

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessors are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessors) are
charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Income from lease of machinery is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
leases.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and
Company’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risk: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of the financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company. The
Directors provide principles for an overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific
areas.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities which are denominated in a
currency that is not the Company’s functional
currency.

The Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in HK$ and Macao Patacas
(“MOP”). The majority of assets and liabilities are
denominated in HK$, MOP and Euro (“EUR”),
and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. Management
considered that the foreign exchange risk for
MOP is minimal since exchange rate fluctuation
was minimal.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2018: 5%) against EUR with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s
net assets at the year end and profits for the
year would have been HK$1,327,000 (2018:
HK$1,453,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of foreign currency gains/losses on
translation of the bank borrowings dominated in
EUR.

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
attributable to its cash and bank balances and
borrowings. Except for borrowings with variable
interest, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing liabilities. Borrowings at variable
interest rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Cash and bank balances at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group has not used any interest
rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk.

As at 31 March 2019,
borrowings had been 100 basis-points higher/

if the interest rates on

lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would be HK$826,000
(2018: HK$702,000) lower/higher mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest expense on floating
rate borrowings.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

3 BRERER (&)

3.1

®  Aunwal Report 2019

B 7% E e 5= (&)

@  SMNERE (E)
R201943A318 » 8 T
HEOTEEEA TH5%
(20184 : 5% ) M AT A H
fthEEERTE BIAE
ERFHE - EEFERSF
EHE A S B EF TR
1,327,000 7T (20187 :
1,453,000%7T) * EEZHRN
BRE BT ENRITEE
EAERINE I es B o

b)  FIFEEE

AEEMMNERBREERE
HIR S RIBITEHRA KRG
o BRTEBMERIN K&
BUERMmEESaE-
FEREFRSAEBHEES
mE R KRR o 1% B E F &
ATEMBEES RIRITEHRSAE
SEEHQAFERNERR
2N 55 B0 4 A R R 4 B
b= Rl

72019F3A31H - i fE K
WA E EF T FH1001EE
M AEEMEHERT
B AFARBREFES
B3R 4> # H1826,0007 JT
(20184F : 702,000/ 7T ) °
FE2HMNFEERF S
g BB



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEERERE (&)
3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HUKEBAEAZE)

(c) Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade and retention receivables, deposits and
other receivables, contract assets, cash in bank
and restricted bank balances.

To manage the risk arising from cash in bank
and restricted bank balances, the Group only
transacts with reputable banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions. There has
no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss is
close to zero.

For deposits and other receivables, management
makes periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability
of deposits and other receivables based
on historical settlement records and past
experience. The management believes that the
expected credit loss is close to zero.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, all trade and retention
receivables and contract assets are monitored on
an ongoing basis.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and
retention receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
and retention receivables and contract assets
have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets related to unbilled work
in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade and retention
receivables for the same types of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets and retention receivables.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of trade and retention
receivables and contract assets over the period
before the consolidated balance sheet date
and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified the Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) of the cities in which
it operates to be the most relevant factor, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based
on expected changes in these factors.
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e P RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEERERE (&)
3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HUKEBAEAZE)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group overall considers the shared credit
risk characteristic and the days past due of
the trade and retention receivables as the
measurement for the expected credit loss.
During the year, expected loss rate of trade and
retention receivables are assessed to be less
than 0.1%. The loss allowance provision for these
balances was not material during the years ended
31 March 2018 and 2019.

The Group categorises trade or other receivables
for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments. Where trade or other
receivables have been written off, the Group
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of
trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade
receivables was assessed based on the incurred
loss model. Individual receivables which were
known to be uncollectible were written off by
reducing the carrying amount directly. The
other receivables were assessed collectively to
determine whether there was objective evidence
that an impairment had been incurred but not
yet been identified. For these receivables the
estimated impairment losses were recognised in
a separate provision for impairment. The Group
considered that there was evidence of impairment
if any of the following indicators were present:

o significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

o probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation; and

o default or late payments (more than 30
days overdue).

Receivables for which an impairment provision
was recognised were written off against the
provision when there was no expectation of
recovering additional cash.

(d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity
will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations

associated with financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial assets.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEERERE (&)
3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HUKEBAEAZE)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of short-term
financial assets, receivables and certain assets
that the Group considers appropriate and long
term financing including long-term borrowings
are also considered by the Group in its capital
structuring. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping sufficient bank balances
and interest bearing borrowings which enable
the Group to continue its business for the
foreseeable future.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interests
payments computed using contractual rates, or
if floating, based on the current rates at the year
end date). Where the loan agreement contains
a repayable on demand clause which gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loan at
any time, the amounts repayable are classified
in the earliest time bracket in which the lender
could demand repayment. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBREBER (&)
3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HHKEREKREZE)
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (@  EEBEZER(E
On
demand

and Between Between
lessthan 1and2 2and5
1 year years years Total
RERRKR
PR—F —ZEME —EHF HE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHET FHERT FHERT THER

As at 31 March 2019 R2019%

3H31H
Trade and retention payables JENE 5308

NRE® 34,833 - - 34,833
Accruals and other payables fEETRIBRE

ftb FE A~ 5/ IR 8,684 - - 8,684
Amount due to a director e —%&

BEMA - - 3,186 3,186
Long-term bank loans RHISRITER 5,065 1,642 384 7,091
Short-term bank loans EHIRITER 80,018 - - 80,018
Obligations under finance leases FEEMHE & (T 7,897 1,449 - 9,346

136,497 3,091 3,570 143,158
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MERRER (&)
3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HKREKREZGE)
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (@  AEBELEE ()
On
demand

and Between Between

less than 1and 2 2 and 5
1 year years years Total
PR—F —ZEWMFE _—_ELF #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FHET FHET

As at 31 March 2018 R2018%

3H31H
Trade and retention payables JENE 5708

MRE® 53,432 - - 53,432
Accruals and other payables st IE N E

ftb FE A~ 5/ IR 7,936 - - 7,936
Amount due to a director B —%&

EERE - - 3,147 3,147
Long-term bank loans REBRITER 19,680 4,996 2,016 26,692
Short-term bank loans RHRITER 29,109 - 29,109

Obligations under finance leases FEEMHEE (T 17,852 7,855 1,443 27,150

128,009 12,851 6,606 147,466
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3.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BERBER(EZ)
Capital risk management 3.2 EAXRKERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital REBEEEANH B IZER
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue BAREEAFELSE R
as a going concern in order to provide returns for 77 T AR R B R &
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders REMBERFFA ARMSRAR
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to & ARNREBRENELRE
reduce the cost of capital. BUARRKE AR o
The capital structure of the Group consists of REBWEREHEBIEER
equity and borrowings. In order to maintain or RABFR o BHERFIERARE RS
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust B ANEERSHEIN T’
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, RHRECH  MRREEE
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares & BITHIRE R EEE LR
or sell assets to reduce borrowings. The Group DER - REBUEERAGL
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The RESENR o BEBBLLERMN
gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided BEFERAEERTE -8
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total EFRENEERRIR S MRS
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, FHEBY - BESRTTERUA R
short-term bank deposit and restricted bank 1EAE IR R PTIEH 2 SR
balances pledged for security of the borrowings. TSR THERRETE - BEBAGEL
The gearing ratios were as follows: RYOR ¢
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Borrowings (including obligations EBER(REREREE
under finance leases (note 22) EE) (Biitz2) 95,898 81,111
Less: cash and cash equivalents B IReERREEEY
(note 17) (Biz%17) (196,964) (256,401)
Net cash B4 Em (101,066) (175,290)
Total equity B 625,916 685,720
Gearing ratio BEABLX N/ATEH N/AZ i A
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e P RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets (other than financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income)
and financial liabilities, including cash and
cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits,
restricted bank balances, trade and retention
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
trade and retention payables, other payables and
borrowings approximate their fair values, which
either due to their short-term maturities, or that
they are subject to floating rates.

The carrying amount of amount due to a director
was a reasonable approximation of its fair value.

The Group’s financial instruments are measured
in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised
into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as

follows:

2019

Financial assets at fair value through BRAFERTA
other comprehensive income Hib2mEIA
(note 14) ZEREE

(KiaE14)

2018

Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE
(note 14) (Biit14)

3 BEERER (&)

3.3

Level 1
£
HK$’000
TET

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

AT

AEENEREE (BAF
BFf ARMBEEBRAZ S E
BERIN RERAE (B
ReRBESEEY  EHR
TFR - ZRHIRITHESRR
B SHHRANRES %
& REMBRIR - BYE
ZRERREE - HMEN
RIAREF) BB HARE
HILFBF KR
E;BENEAERREN
DNFEREE -

%%

BN —REFFENEKEE
RERNFENREOH -

AEEz 2R T BRAUG
BERHEHERNEAE
BEERZEEERBRER
FEAK - ZFRAERZR
AFEERBERMAT=

g
Level 2 Level 3
R=E E=E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
- 20,920
- 20,520
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

8.8 Fair value estimation (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019, there
were no transfers of financial assets of the
Group between different levels of the fair value
hierarchy.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, there
were no significant changes in the business or
economic circumstances that affect the fair value
of the Group’s financial assets.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, there were
reclassifications of financial assets of the Group
after the adoption of HKFRS 9, as set out in note
2.2(b).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

3 BRERER (&)

3.3

AFEIE ()

E =2019F3A31H L F
B UEAEESREET
AEEBRRNZTRERZ
FEEJE/‘]%% ©

B Z=20194F3A31H 1L F
B FEASEcREER
BB ST S A B IR IR I
EpN- I

#H E2019F3A31H IEF
B REME AP B mE %
A9 1% - AEE M &Rt
BEENH R (WHE2.2()
FR#L) o

4 EESFHEF R A

fhat RAE DK BB S &R R E
A= (BHEEEMNBR THRKSE
HELRARSENTAR) (EHE

S -

R B R RAE R R RER © 5L
SEHARTHERTE  BEREE
B eREHERGERER - Bk

= A

ERTERBRFENEER

& (R R RREA(F 1 B A B R A first
RBRAROT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(@)

Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction costs are prepared by
the management on the basis of quotations
prepared by the management on the basis of
quotations from time to time provided by the
major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved
and the experience of the management. In order
to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date,
management conducts periodic reviews of the
budgets of contracts by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred. Such
significant estimate may have impact on the profit
recognised in each period.

The Group recognises its contract revenue
based on the satisfaction of the performance
obligation either input method or output method,
by reference to the contract costs incurred up
to the end of reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract or
according to the percentage of work performed
to date of individual contract of construction
works as a percentage of total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the
contract activity is entered into and the date
when the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. The Group reviews
and revised the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract
as the contract progress. Management regularly
reviews the progress of the contracts and the
corresponding costs of the contract revenue.

e P RRME

4 BEEETHET R A E ()

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

BEAH
AEERG ETRRE R

BRIREREANRENE
KRN~ BRI - BEIR
BRAEHRERT - EEE
RIBFEEERENBRE (T
RESLEFEENETEARZ
A HEERBEERT
BIRHOREMRE) KT
BN ERRRIZEXATE
B o BERERNTHHE
5 EEERAHBRES
BRERELESREMEHY
BHREETEN - ZHE
NGt ARER BN & AT A

A Al o

AEEREBEHENETINE
1T oA 8 AR St HORFERR &
BHRBA  BEH2EHEER
THREENAORAEE
BABMBET AN B D
EBURRETIRENES
ETHNIREREAHNEELZ
B - AR REBEZESK
EITRBNMNE - 54D
WRI M B HI SR B Ry SERK B
HBEEBRTRNE
B AEEERNAKETHE
R RIER] BB RES DR
OB HWA - SR -
BEIRE REHOREME -
EEETHRRTAERER
BHBARBEBRA
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(o)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant
and equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the Group’s
business model, its assets management policy,
the industry practice, expected usage of the
assets, expected repair and maintenance, the
technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in the market.
Residual values of the machinery and equipment
are determined based on prevailing market
values for equivalent aged assets taking into
account the condition of the relevant assets or
the value of scrap metal and other economic
considerations. Depreciation expense would
be significantly affected by the useful lives and
residual values of the plant and equipment as
estimated by management.

If the residual values of plant and equipment
had further decreased by 10%, the depreciation
expenses would increase by HK$5,344,000
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$4,984,000).

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether plant and
equipment exhibit any indications of impairment.
The recoverable amounts, if required, are
determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. These calculations require the

use of judgment and estimates.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EESHETTRYE (&)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(©

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment
(Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing:

(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset value may
not be recoverable;

(if) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to
dispose or net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business;
and

(iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.

Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may
be necessary to take an impairment charge to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

Wtk MR EEHRE ()

EEREBTEERERE
HE - CEBREE

(i) R CHBRARETR
FRREENEER
CIjvAE S

(ii) A E & E (BAFE
(ENE k=@ N A
BEEXEBHERE
EFHERZ KRB ®
RERBEFEMNEZ
ReE)RBRNAX
HEER@EE: &

(i) wEBRETBBAM
RzExE2REESE
g B % B
SEEAREUNEEF
THTIH o

EEERFEBEREEL
R (BRENRER) ERME
1t KEERERHMABZ
REFETREATE  #

5 & AN 5 B 2 B iR &
RRERE - WIRARE L
BZARBEZRERALR
ERTFEE - RIRTGEAR
FEE2ERERPEIREE
P °
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
Hong Kong and Macau. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in
the period in which such determination is made.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue from contracts with customers, which is also
the Group’s turnover, represents gross contract receipts
on foundation works and ancillary services in the
ordinary course of business. Revenue recognised is as
follows:

Foundation works and ancillary
services

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The
executive directors regard the Group’s business as
one single operating segment and reviews financial
information accordingly.

Revenue from foundation works and ancillary services
are recognised over time during the year 31 March 2019
(2018: same).

(@) Segment information

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from
customers in Hong Kong. The principal assets
of the Group were also located in Hong Kong as
at 31 March 2019. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical segment is provided.

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

WETI2 KB AR

e P RRME

EFENBARDHER

BEEAHBAEER R XK RRES
WETITREHNERENEEHIK
WA

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR
452,268 518,479

ARANBTESTREESEER
BEREA -HTEZEHAKEN
EBEon—EE—KLDH A
HEEHMEER -

RECE201956F3A31 AL FE -+ #
E T2 NI B AR5 0 U A T BE s
HER (20184 : 4B -

ok

@ HHER
AEBHRAETERERE
BREFE - B 2201943 A31
B AfENFEEEEINM
REE - Bt - WHERHRIE
Hh[E 2 B EITHI DT -
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e SRR

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 5 EFEHARARDEER (&)

CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b)  Revenue derived from major customers b) EXEFERXPHKA
External customers which individually contributed RE E20194F %2018 3 A
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for 318 L E A —EFZ BB
any of the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 BASBENABFEENLAYK
are as below: ABEBBI0% ZINATS

U

Year ended 31 March

HZESAIBHLEE

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

Customer A EFR 326,384 420,221

Customer B (Note) R (K1) 90,753 N/AT i@
Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute M BREBRAHEEBR
over 10% of total revenue of the Group for the HEAFEZEAW AR

respective year. BRI T HIB10% o

6 OTHER (LOSS)/GAIN, NET, AND OTHER INCOME 6 Hip (FE) WE-FHEUARE

2 U A

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHAT

Other (loss)/gain, net Hio (BE) W=

— P

Gain on disposal of plant and o AR R R Y
equipment W 2= - 5,960
Write-off of plant and equipment Gl N (1,000) (172)
(1,000) 5,788
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER (LOSS)/GAIN, NET, AND OTHER INCOME

(Continued)

Other income PN
Leasing of machinery TH S A
Government grant 5T 78 B

Reimbursement from the deed of
indemnity (note)

Note:

The balance of amounts due from customers for contract work
as at 31 March 2017 included HK$9,374,000 not yet certified
by a customer. On 14 November 2013, a subsidiary of the
Company served a notice of arbitration to this customer to
settle the dispute on the final payment of the contract.

In connection with the listing of the Company on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a
deed of indemnity (the “Deed of Indemnity”) was signed on
25 September 2014, pursuant to which Mr. Lau Chun Ming,
irrecoverably and unconditionally undertakes to pay up the
entire sum or the shortfall, if any, on demand by the Group if
the Group fails to recover such amount of HK$9,374,000.

On 30 November 2017, the final award of the arbitration was
issued concluding this customer as the successful party to
resist the claim by the Group, and the Group should also pay
a portion of this customer’s costs of claim. Management of the
Group decided to accept the conclusion by arbitrator and the
Deed of Indemnity was consequently executed to compensate
the corresponding amount of HK$9,374,000 written off
from contracting work-in-progress to the costs of sales and
HK$9,502,000 costs of claim specified in the final award
charged to the administrative expense. The reimbursement
from the deed of indemnity is recorded in other income.

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

REBEREESZ
BRI (A 72)

e P RRME

Hitt (BR) s - FEUARA
LA (4F)

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER TR
484 -

- 162

- 18,876

484 19,038

M2017F3A3IBECEREFEHT
BeBABREE —E2RPHARER
9,374,000/ 7T ° 2013411 A14H -
/NG NI R ks Juek GF
WA BURRE S OREMSRBAL

25 o
I

M2014F9A25H + BEANR RN & BBt
AERGABRABER EMHE—HE
BRI ([TRERE]) Bt - RARE
B 2R AR ST A S P ] R A AR RS
i A5 55 [E Kk B U 2] 5 B /189,374,000
BT BREAEEER2BEINER
SEkEE(E) -

R20174F11 308 + ZMHE 2 HIZEIR
FLAB L - AL PR | AN
BrHR MAEBETEZNZEFH
BOBRRKAE - AEETEREREER
REBEL &R - IR RITRER
B AHEXAHEREEZSOIRESR
#8852 9,374,00078 748 FE & FH A R FETT
R SR AR BRI ET B 2 R R AN
9,502,000/ 7T © RIBEMEZIBER 2 E
FRIBHIVEE AU A o
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Cost of sales

Construction contracts costs
(note (a))

Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
— leased plant and equipment

Repair and maintenance

Others

Administrative expenses
Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments (note (b))
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment

Operating lease rental in respect of

— office and storage premises

— directors’ quarters (note 29(a))

Professional fees

Motor vehicle expenses
Bank charges
Exchange (gains)/losses
Others

Total cost of sales and administrative

expenses

150 SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEHEEESHAX
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
420,092 441,310
22,966 24,282
1,215 2,140
251 702
3,362 6,000
447,886 474,434
13,925 15,372
1,557 1,507
518 549
9,803 10,363
2,168 2,167
4,155 16,081
1,905 1,927
502 585
(2,517) 7,627
5,487 5,027
,,,,,,,, 37,503 61,405
485,389 535,839
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e P RRME

EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7 RUEEESNEAX(E)
Notes: Hiaz -
(@) Construction contract costs included but are not (a) BESAKSBEERTRR

limited to costs of construction materials, staff costs
(refer to note (b) below), consultancy fee, parts
and consumables, subcontracting charges and
transportation.

Wages and salaries IERF®
Pension costs — defined contribution RIKEKAN—E 5
plans (note) HRET & (B )
Employment benefits EE =
Less: amount included in construction W FT AR S LKA
contracts costs or capitalised in REHNEE/
contract assets/work-in-progress EETRE
=EN e

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in accordance with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of
Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees in Hong Kong are each
required to contribute 5% of the employees’ gross
earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month to the
MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in an employee social
security plan (the “Social Security Plan”) and
contributes a fixed amount for each employee as
required by the regulations in Macau.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the

MPF Scheme and the Social Security Plan is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

BREMBRAE BIEA (2
RTXHE®p)  BRER -
ZHREREm - DBEBEARE
BWEAM -

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT AT
84,017 95,386
2,750 3,010
938 1,263
88,605 99,659
(74,680) (84,287)
13,925 15,372

AEEREBEEBSCABIEATRE
B ETENEGI )2 R B MR
Bt El ([RESTED -
RIFRTESETEIMRA - &S
BEREREEASAKES
U A H5%[A 58 TE & 5T 21 {E
sk - & A LR A1,500/8

JG ©

AEBTIRBRPVERRE R
BrRERESHEEBHERE
A (THeRES) X
1E B E & B3R

AEEpEEEAEREE
REFFE N -BEERRE
BRSEHRERHR -
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7 BRUEEE DB (&)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

Five highest paid individuals (c)

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the five individuals
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
include three directors (2018: three) whose emoluments
were reflected in the analysis presented in note 29(a).
The emoluments paid to the remaining two individuals
(2018: two) are as follows:

Salaries, other allowances and e« HiEIREYRET
benefits in kind

Bonus TEAT

Pension costs RIKE KA — EREH-FKET S

— defined contribution plans

The emoluments of these individuals fell within the
following bands:

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 22,000,000/ 7T

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for the loss of office.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED ® Auwuatl Reporz 2079
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2019 2018
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2,920 2,628
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7 RUEEESNEAX(E)

Notes: (Continued) Kiat - (&)

(@ With effect from 1 April 2018, loss allowance on trade, (d) H2018F4A1H & EWE
retention and other receivables will be separately SRBELRRBeAREME
disclosed as impairment losses on retention receivables. W R IB 45 o Bl I T A E R

Bo 2 HMERIE -

FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS), NET 8 BB A S (RAR)—BEE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Finance income B M A
— Interest income on bank deposits  — R 7T71F 580 I E U A 3,481 2,637
Finance costs B & A
— Interest expense on bank loans —RITEFNFERAZ (1,440) (2,783)
— Interest expense on bank —RITBEIWFERX
overdrafts (46) -
— Interest expense on obligations —REHEREENFEMAX
under finance leases (791) (1,532)
— Interest expense on amount due to —fEfT—REZHNIERF B
a director (note 26(b)) F 2 (f1:726()) (55) (163)
(2,332) (4,478)
Finance income/(costs), net MBA (BR)—F8 1,149 (1,841)
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e PR ERR M

9 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9 FEs (E&) BAxX
The amount of income tax (credited)/charged to the REFE2ERER (GTA) /i
consolidated statement of comprehensive income FriSfieREiE ¢
represents:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Hong Kong profits tax EBMFH
Current income tax BIHAFTIS B (518) 2,493
Deferred income tax (note 19) BIEFTSH (H1aE19) (3,172) (2,387)
Macau profits tax RIS AR
Current income tax BVERFT 15 %5t (3,001) -
Over-provision of current income RFENERFT LAY
tax in prior year FRFE R (436) -
(7,127) 106
Hong Kong profits tax and Macau complementary tax B ZE2019F3A31H IEFE @ E5t
have been provided at the rate of 16.5% and 12%, HET ERT R M 2D 5l1E16.5% &
respectively, on the estimated assessable profit for the 12% M KEH R BB TS T KB FT
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: 16.5% and 12%). S 7T B8 (20184 : 16.5% %
12%) °
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e P RRME

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued) 9 e (E&) BAX (&)
The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax REBERAEH A (BER) &8
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise Bz AEBHRTENIERT
using the tax rate of Hong Kong as follows: HREENMT :
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT T
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSBIAT (B518)
i A (57,497) 5,625
Calculated at tax rate of 16.5% 216.5% M R E A (9,487) 928
Tax effects of: ATEIBENHGE
Tax rates of overseas operation T INE TS HY T 2R 1,163 (29)
Income not subject to tax BAZTRIA (842) (1,354)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes R HFIE % 38 688
Tax losses for which no deferred income WERERRLERSHE
tax asset was recognised ERIAEE 2,441 19
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax AN EL ERER 2
losses HEE (4) (86)
Over-provision of income tax in prior year EFE A B EE R E (436) -
Tax concessions HIER % - (60)
Income tax (credit)/expense s (Ee) HX (7,127) 106
DIVIDEND 10 BRE
The directors do not recommend the payment of final EEFEFTREBEEZ201943 A31
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: nil). HiIEFEHREPKRE (20185 :
=) o

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA
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11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the
respective years. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used for such purpose has
been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the share
subdivision with effect from 23 December 2015.

11 SR (SE) EBA

(a)

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity FiN/NGIE Et =P =N
holders of the Company (HK$’000) fEfh (E1R) /S5 7
(FHT)

Weighted average number of

AAESRERARNNE

ordinary shares for the purpose BRAR INFE T 5 &
of calculating basic earnings (FA)
per share (thousands)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX(E8) &
(HK cents) (L)
Diluted (b)

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is of the same
amount as the basic (loss)/earnings per share as
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

®  Aunwal Report 2019

BN

BREX (BB BT
RIBRA R EREE AEL
(BB) & FBRABEFE
B BT MR ANRE T EGT
B o It A%z ARk
FHEBEEREBMAE - XA
Rt B2015F12 523H i
B AR 1D 7 48 o

2019 2018
(50,370) 9,919
1,680,000 1,680,000
(3.00) 0.33

%58

ShEE (BR) B ET
RER (EEB) /BFER -
It 75 B R 1E B Z20194F &
20183 A31H It FE I &
RITEREEEE L @A -
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SUBSIDIARIES 12 MiE AT
Issued and
Place of fully paid Effective interest Principal activities
Name incorporation share capital held as at and place of operation
1 A AR 3L 3t 26 ERTRAERA FricER R TEXBREELH
2019 2018

Directly held by the Company:

AAAREERS
Sam Woo Group Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
(“SW (BVI)")
= EBRAES 10,000% 7T REEK
Capital Plus Group Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBRAES 2ET REEK
Indirectly held by the Company:
HARRBERE
Sam Woo Bore Pile Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Foundation works and
Foundation Limited ancillary services in
(“SWBP”) Hong Kong
=M EARAA BB 10,000,000 7T REAETHETIRR
([=FR]) REH B RS
Sam Woo Construction & Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100%  Trading of and leasing
Engineering Limited of machinery and
equipment in Hong Kong
=HRREBARAT BB 100,000/ 7T WEBEBRESHIRRE
Sam Woo Engineering Hong Kong HK$500,000 100% 100%  Leasing of machinery
Equipment Limited and equipment in Hong
(“SWEE") Kong
“MERBRAR(=AMER]) FE 500,000/ T REBRERM LR R
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12

SUBSIDIARIES

Name

L

Indirectly held by the Company:

(Continued)
HAARBESE ()

Sam Woo Foundation Limited

Sam Wooltt £ H R A A

Sam Woo Construction Limited

=REEERAA

Sam Woo Civil Contractors
Limited
ZHEARTIRERAA

Sam Woo Civil Works Limited
=REARERAA

Sam Woo Foundation Limited

SHMEATRERAR

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

Place of
incorporation

E AR 3Lt 3

Macau

HAF]

Hong Kong

&

Hong Kong

30

Hong Kong
&E

Hong Kong

&

12

Issued and
fully paid

B s AR

Effective interest

share capital held as at

ERTRARKRA FEBERES
2019 2018

MOP30,000 100% 100%

JRP%30,000

HK$9,300,000 100% 100%

9,300,000/87T

HK$10,000 100% 100%

10,0007 7T

HK$2 100% 100%

28T

HK$2 100% 100%

28T

®  Aunwal Report 2019

Principal activities
and place of operation
FTEEBREENS

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Macau

RRFIETHETER
RO AR

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETER
HRALR B AR 7S

Inactive

BT

s

Inactive
Tmex

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETER
AN B RS



12

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

SUBSIDIARIES

Name

L

Indirectly held by the Company:
(Continued)
RAAREERSS : (H)

Sam Woo Finance Limited

“HMBERAR

Sam Woo Offshore
Engineering Limited
“MEFIRBRAF

Sam Woo Asia Development
Group Limited
SNEHEREBERAA

Sam Woo Foundation
Group Limited
S ESERRAH

Redland Contractors Limited

Place of
incorporation

REER 3L 4 3

Hong Kong

&

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong

BE

—R—NFFHR

12 KEAF
Issued and
fully paid Effective interest
share capital held as at
ERTRERRA Fiis B ER

2019 2018

HK$2 100% 100%
28T
HK$1 100% 100%
1T
HK$1 100% 100%
18T
HK$1 100% 100%
1T
HK$2 100% 100%
28T

s ZHEEEEERAH

Principal activities
and place of operation

TERBREEME

Provision of financial
services to group
companies

EESENGE s

Inactive

EmET

Inactive

EEE

Inactive

BEEK

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBEMEETIRR
TeH RS
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13 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 H#HEERE
Machinery Furniture
and and Motor
equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BHRRE HBARRE AE st
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
THET THT TET THT
At 31 March 2017 M201743A31H
Cost R 836,934 1,796 8,776 847,506
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (206,316) (1,434) (6,229) (213,979)
Net book amount REFE 630,618 362 2,547 633,527
Year ended 31 March 2018 HZ2018F3A31H
HFE
Opening net book amount FNRMFE 630,618 362 2,547 633,527
Additions B 327 110 720 1,157
Written-off HisH 172) - - 172)
Disposals & (31,789) - - (31,789)
Depreciation e (25,930) (162) (879) (26,971)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 573,054 310 2,388 575,752
At 31 March 2018 R201843A31H
Cost %N 804,783 1,287 9,380 815,450
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (231,729) 977) (6,992) (239,698)
Net book amount FEFE 573,054 310 2,388 575,752
Year ended 31 March 2019 HZ201993A31H
HFE
Opening net book amount FUOREFE 573,054 310 2,388 575,752
Additions e 13,492 34 36 13,562
Write-off s (1,000) - - (1,000)
Depreciation e (23,592) (127) (980) (24,699)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 561,954 217 1,444 563,615
At 31 March 2019 R201943A318
Cost %N 816,884 1,299 9,415 827,598
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (254,930 (1,082) (7,971) (263,983)
Net book amount REFE 561,954 217 1,444 563,615

160 SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED  ®  iuusat Repont 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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13  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 HHERE(Z)
(@)  The net book amount of plant and equipment (a) WBEMEHEETEENK
held under finance lease obligations comprises WA RENRTFEESE
(note 22(e)): (Bt sE22()) :
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT

Cost — Capitalised finance leases A —-BETELRN

BEMRE 68,432 89,706

Accumulated depreciation R E (4,046) (5,997)

Net book amount AR FHE 64,386 83,709
(b)  As at 31 March 2019, plant and equipment (o) 2019 3H31H ' €% A
amounting to HK$76,372,000 (2018: 76,372,000/ 7T (20184
HK$116,969,000) were secured for the Group’s 116,969,000/ 7T) K # %
bank loans (note 22(f)(ii)). BEAEAEERITER

B (B RE22(F) (i) °

14  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 14 RAFEFAHMZEARAZE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME MEE
Equity investments at fair value through other BEAFEFAEMEAERAZ KA
comprehensive income &
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Opening amount FHEHE 20,520 -
Fair value gain NEER = 400 -
Closing amount FREHE 20,920 -
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14

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

Financial assets previously classified as available-for-sale
financial assets (2018)

Opening amount FH&58
Fair value gain A EKE
Closing amount FREHE

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income/available-for-sale financial assets
are unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group holds 5% of issued
capital of Gold Champion Enterprises Limited which
is an unlisted entity principally engaged in investment
properties holding (2018: same).

None of the financial assets is impaired.

Management considered the fair value of the unlisted
securities mainly represented the fair values of the
investee's investment properties, net of its net current
liabilities. These investment properties which are
situated in Hong Kong are valued by an independent
valuer, RHL Appraisal Limited, with reference to
prices realised on actual sales and/or asking prices
of comparable properties of similar size, development
scale, nature, character and locations. The valuations
have been made on the assumption that the owner sells
the investment properties on the market in their existing
state without the benefit of a cash rebate, deferred
terms contract, leaseback, joint venture, management
agreement or any other similar arrangement which
could serve to increase the value of the properties.
Management considered that the net current liabilities
approximated their fair values due to their short-term
maturities.

The fair values of financial assets through other

comprehensive income/available-for-sales financial asset
are within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see note 3.3).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

14

BAFEFARMEZERAZE
MEE(E)

BEIERARLESREE
(2018F) 2 & WEE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET

- 19,750

- 770

- 20,520

BRAFEFARMBEERAZ 2
BE/TMHEEEHEERNEE
ZIEEMRATES

R2019F3A31H ' ~"EEFE 2
BEEERAB ([£RE]) B 1T
BA5% - B BEEREREYD
FEERZIEEMER (20184 : 4
&) o

i S Bl & & IRRE -

ERERR  LMBEHRZAFE
TERERETRENEZAFE
(BEERBDEREFR) - ZFR
BEMEUNEE - HREEBELUX
N BRAE EE  FEACE
A LB ENERHER TR
BE K,k BB 1% i B E AT X
MITRHEREM AR A RETHE -
HEIDBRERANDER LT
B EHERBEYMEMER SO
ELEFFEH  EREHE %D
¥ BEERWHAIERMEMAIRAD
RXEEZEULBNTR - BEE
RmE AEFERRE R A E
EERTE -

BRAFEFAEMEZEBAZER
BE/AHEESREE s AT E
BRAFEBRZE=H(RH=E
3.3) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 15
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables JEUE 55118
Retention receivables FERIRE &
Trade and retention receivables JEWE ZHIBRREE
Less: loss allowance W EiE R
(note (b) and (c)) (H1:E () % (c))

Deposits, prepayments and other &~ FEMFRIE R EA

receivables (note (a)) EUWEIA (M5 (@)
Less: non-current portion B FERNERER
Current portion BVEAEL 5

Note (a): The balance mainly represents rental deposit,
prepayment for sub-contractor fee, prepayment
for plant and equipment and other miscellaneous
prepayments.

The credit period granted to trade customers other than
for retention receivables was generally ranged from
45 to 90 days. The terms and conditions in relation to
the release of retention vary from contract to contract,
which may be subject to practical completion, the expiry
of the defect liability period or a pre-agreed time period.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

e P RRME

BREZRERRES  URE
&~ R RKE R H Ath B KR

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT THET
14,780 70,499
56,087 50,762
70,867 121,261
(25,009) -
45,858 121,261
7,950 6,810
(2,098) (2,905)
5,852 3,905

Wit %EHRIZR/BEERE
DBREBENMKE - B K
REH BN FRIBN R E A
RN IR ©

BREWMRBEIN  BEHRFE—KE
KASEQHMEER - REREB &
WIER R IGGRES SN mAE T
M- ATRE B ERRT MBS E
H BN ENEFERE R 2%
B ARE W EFFAEMERRE
R o
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15

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on
invoice date was as follows:

1 to 30 days 1Z230H
31 to 60 days 31£60H
Total 4Bt

In the consolidated balance sheet, retention receivables
were classified as current assets. The ageing of the
retention receivables based on invoice date was as

follows:

Within 1 year —FNRN
Between 1 and 5 years —EhRF
More than 5 years BB R F

As at 31 March 2019, there were no trade and retention

receivables which were past due (2018: Nil).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

15 EREFHERREBES URIRER
£ - BAREBREMEWKRRE

(%)
FEWE 5 FBRIRHE R B HEL A
FREe DTN T
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
SR THET
14,780 18,712
- 51,787
14,780 70,499

REREERBRRA  BERRES
DERRBDEE - BRRRBEESRE
ERAHRKRET

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TET
6,766 8,617
48,799 41,623
522 522
56,087 50,762

MN2019FE3A31H @ WED AHH
JEUWE 5B RIRE & (20184 :

&) -
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TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 15

AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and

retention receivables that are assessed for impairment

are as follows:

Opening amount FUIEH

Increase in loss allowance recognised in FARERER
profit and loss during the year BB g N
(note (b) and (c)) (5t m) % (c))

Closing amount FREHE

As at 31 March 2019, retention receivables of
HK$25,009,000 were fully provided.

Note (b)

On 13 February 2017, a subsidiary of the Company has filed a
civil procedure in Macau court against a customer to recover
certain retention receivables amounted to HK$10,134,000.
During the year, the Macau First Instance Court delivered a
judgement against the claims, since then, management has
begun to launch an appeal against such judgement. The
subsidiary of the Company has submitted an appeal of the
judgement to the Macau Second Instance Court before year
ended. Taking into consideration the uncertainty surrounding
the outcome of the appeal, management has decided to make
a full provision on the retention receivables and the appeal is
still on progress as at 31 March 2019.

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

e P RRME

BREZRERRES  URE
TENREREMERRE
(&)

AR ER RN E S RARRE 2

AREREEHWT :
2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiB FBT

25,009 -

25,009 -

MR2019E3 HA31H » 25,009,000/%
T2 EWIRE € BEEE -

K1iEb)

R2017F2 8138 + XA RKIE A A
HE LR MRIERIRE REEE
27 A Y [E110,134,0008 7T 2 & T &
WREBE - FR - BPIMAERIED
REBHEBRRZHR mMEEERH
FrRFARE A BAHREL E5F - AR
A B A R E R EARTRDRFI RE
iR HRz L3 - ZRE|E %% L
FERTAREE EEERTE
EWIREB S FHREEHEE - M LEFR
20193 A31 B HEHETT °
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15

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note (c)

As at 31 March 2018, a subsidiary of the Company has an
amount of HK$14,875,000 retention receivables outstanding
from another customer. During the year, the employer of the
customer lost its land use right in the relevant construction site
to Macau Court of Final Appeal. Management is in the process
of seeking to negotiate with the customer for the recovery of
the retention receivables. However, in view of the uncertainty in
the current situation, the management has decided to make a
full provision on this retention receivables.

The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables
approximated their fair values and were denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
MOP ki

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and retention
receivables and contract assets.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables
and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign
currency risk and interest risk can be found in note 3.1.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

15

BREZRERRES  URE
T-ENREREMERRE
(%)

Ht iz (c)

AABBRARERKS —BRFPZ
14,875,000/ TIEKRE® - FA -
RFIRE LR AR TP 2 EERER
RABREE TR T TR - B8
[BE = REZ R P #EITREE LA E &
WREBE - AT - &R EAIERZ T
TEEE X - B EAE I EERR
Bort iR 2 8UEE -

BWESHRERREEHERE
HHEANFERE - WA T E®EE
& :

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
45,858 96,252
- 25,009
45,858 121,261

B K LR

AEBERBEEVHREELF
SR ERRBEEEE - sF
ERKEZFRARRESARA
MEERRBREFENEHNEEE
o

BEEWE ZZERENAEE S
B - JMNE R B & F R R A E
BRI RES.1 -
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CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 16 BHNEEREBHNERB EW
LIABILITIES/AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) (B ZEFAHNIREE
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Contract costs incurred plus attributable HEZAFEELX
profits less foreseeable losses to date B4R DN RS
St MR AT T8 BB R 1,404,940 1,016,128
Progress billings to date HEZAMEERN (1,430,635)  (1,113,763)
(25,695) (97,635)
Included in current assets/(liabilities) SARBEE, (AfE)
are the following: KSR T ¢
Due from customers for contract works B EFPAEHTIESEE - 231
Due to customers for contract works ENBEFPEHIIESEE - (97,866)
Contract assets (note i) BHEE (Miti) 8,616 -
Contract liabilities (note i) BREE (Bati) (34,311) -
(25,695) (97,635)
(i) Contract assets related to construction services (i) HEEREEBACAENEE
consist of unbilled amount resulting from BREAEERGEENEE
construction when the cost-to-cost method of R BRI AR B E [
revenues recognised exceeds the amount billed REHVERENSREFR AR
the customer. FVRE SR -
(i)  The contract liabilities primarily relate to (i) EHEBEFZHEFEPKIE
the advanced consideration received from MBEAKREARR -
customers.
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17 BERBFSEEYURZREIR
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 1THE R
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash at bank RITIR S 196,919 256,358
Cash on hand FEE® 45 43
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIEEEEY 196,964 256,401
Restricted bank balances R HISR1T 58 3,075 3,020
Maximum exposure to credit risk FrEENESEEERE 199,994 259,378
Note: As at 31 March 2019, the restricted bank balance Kzt - KR20199F3A31H » R
represents a deposit of HK$3,075,000 (2018: iR 17 45 8 £ 3,075,000/ 7T
HK$3,020,000) placed by a director (note 21). (20184 : 3,020,000/ 7C) B —

REEFANES (FFE21) -
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e P RRME

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank balances were denominated in the
following currencies:

HK$ BIT
MOP ek
Others EAh
SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 18
RESERVES
(@) Share capital
Ordinary shares, authorised: LERCGEE)

At 31 March 2018 and
31 March 2019

R201843A31H0 K
201943 A31H

Ordinary shares, issued and ZER(ERTR

fully paid:
At 31 March 2018 and
31 March 2019

BWE) -
R2018%3A31H &
201943 H31H

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

RERASEEMURZRER

fTHEeR (7))

Re RIReFEWARZRHIRT
AR IREEIA T E%EHE -

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
199,801 258,331
98 815
140 275
200,039 259,421
B RO EERFE
(a) A& 7
Number of
shares HK$
BHEE BT
4,000,000,000 10,000,000
1,680,000,000 4,200,000
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18 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 18 RAX RO EERFEEE)
RESERVES (Continued)

(o)  Share premium and reserves (b) B 1 5 18 N R
Financial
assets at
Available- fair value

for-sale  through other
financial ~ comprehensive

Share assets income Other Retained
premium reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
#OTE
AR
2EYA
THHEE  CEREE
RbEE  CHEERR i HiRfE fREER it

HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS 000 HK$1000 HK§1000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR T

(Note)
W)
At 31 March 2017 2017634318 194,087 - - 10,500 487 444 692,031
Profi for the year EEET - - - - 5519 5519
Fair value gains on e REE,
avallble-forsale IRl
financial assets - 110 - - - 170
Finel dhidends reating BEEZN0E
fo the year ended SASIALER
31 March 2017 ks = = = = (16,800 (16,800)
At 31 March 2018 12018237318 194,087 mn - 10,500 476,163 681,520
Changes i accounting polides &5t %% - (1m0) m - (9,8%4) (9,8%4)
Restated balance at 1 Aprl 2018 7001854 517 285|444 194,087 - m 10,500 466,329 671,686
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (50,370) (50,370}
Falr value gains on fiancial BATEIAEANAL
assets at FVOC! SHAE/LTENE - - 400 - - 400
At 31 March 2019 12019834318 194,087 - 1,170 10,500 415,959 621,716
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18 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 18 BA& - RO EERRE(F)
RESERVES (Continued)

(o)  Share premium and reserves b) BB EKRFEE
Note: Biat -
Other reserves of the Group represented the difference REBMEMEEIERIEEA
between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired FrUtEE ey M B A R IR AT R
pursuant to the Reorganisation over the nominal value BB EREKRATETAR
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange AIRAEmERNEZELBER
thereof and the difference between the aggregation of 2003%F 52 X 7 8 #5 AT Uk B8 Y
the nominal value of the share capital of SWBP and = TN b B BE = R0 A 7Y B A
SWEE acquired over the nominal value of the share EEAN - = AIREUE AR
capital of SW (BVI) issued in exchange thereof pursuant 7K M 2 17 B9 = F(BVI) A% A< T
to the reorganisation completed in 2003. BERZEE -
19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 19 EEFRBH
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax BERIEEEMRERBEBESNT
liabilities were as follows: (N
2019 2018
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Deferred income tax asset: BEFMSTHEE !
Recoverable after more than K128 A &Y [E
12 months 8,547 9,208
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEMBHARE .
Payable or to be settled 1216 A & B s iEE
more than 12 months (49,556) (56,017)
Payable or to be settled within 1218 A AR sk 4805
12 months (3,506) (3,340)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net RIEFEHEE—#5E (44,515) (50,149)
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19  DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 19 EEZEMSH (&)
Deferred income tax and liabilities are offset when there BEEMEHEERBERE ITKE
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets o 4|30 77 42 1| 5 B HE 75 18 & B B2 B[
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred HnEaEEE  BREMSTE
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. 7] — B/ B 8 AR B B T DA 8 o
The movement on the deferred income tax account was EEFTSRHHERE #EuT
as follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Balance at 1 April, as originally RAF1BZ &

presented (WREET)) (50,149) (52,536)
Change in accounting policy (note 2.2) SETBURES) (Ki22.2) 2,462 -
Balance at 1 April, as restated R4 A18 2 &8k (KEF) (47,687) (52,536)
Recognised in the consolidated Rére 2EEERA

statement of comprehensive income TR (K1aE9)

(note 9) 3,172 2,387
Balance at 31 March M3 A31 B 2 &% (44,515) (50,149)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities BELEREEBEMNEENES (LT
without taking into consideration the offsetting of EZRBRMRBAAEEERAZE
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, were as BREH) R
follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities FEMESRARE

Accelerated

tax

depreciation Total

INEBIETE e

HK$’'000 HK$’'000

FAT FAT

Balance at 1 April 2018 201854 A1 B z # gk 92,213 92,213
Recognised in the consolidated RERE 2 & AR

statement of comprehensive income (831) (831)

Balance at 31 March 2018 2018331 H 2 4 91,382 91,382
Recognised in the consolidated RErE 2 HEKER EEWEEW

statement of comprehensive income 147 147

Balance at 31 March 2019 R2019%F3 H31H Z &k 91,529 91,529
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19

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

e P RRME

19 EEFBH (Z)

Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSHEE
Unrealised Tax
profit losses Total
RERRR BIEEE et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT FAET FAET
Balance at 1 April 2017 M201754 A1 B 2 &5 917 38,760 39,677
Recognised in the consolidated REREERERA
statement of comprehensive income 7 8,291 (6,735) 1,556
Balance at 31 March 2018, as R2018F3A31H 2 &
originally presented B (MREE7) 9,208 32,025 41,233
Changes in accounting S ERE
policies (note 2.2) (Hie2.2) 2,462 - 2,462
Balance at 1 April 2018, as restated 20184 1R 2 4
(& =75) 11,670 32,025 43,695
Recognised in the consolidated REEE2ERERA
statement of comprehensive income E7 (3,123) 6,442 3,319
Balance at 31 March 2019 R201953H31HZ
3 8,547 38,467 47,014

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same tax jurisdiction. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the

EEFEREERBEBERAAIMEKA
58 BT R 5 BN HA P 1S 7% B 2 B
BEFS A ELH - RREMREF
i B[R] — Wi %5 B AR [ AR B B T 1A
i - REREERBERTEID
R NMELEE HHRET) W

consolidated balance sheet. T
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHBT T
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFSHAE (53,062) (59,357)
Deferred income tax assets BREFTIS I E E 8,547 9,208
(44,515) (50,149)

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA
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e PR ERR M

19

20

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
had unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$19,595,000 (2018: HK$4,997,000) that can be
carried forward to offset against future taxable income,
of which an amount of HK$1,264,000 and HK$844,000
(2018: HK$1,264,000 will expire in 2020) will expire
in 2020 and 2021 respectively and an amount of
HK$17,487,000 (2018: HK$3,733,000) has no expiry
date.

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES,
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
ERRE &

Retention payables

e &
R

Total trade and retention payables

Accruals and other payables (Note)

Note: The amounts mainly represent accruals and other
payables for constructing work-in-progress, wages,
legal and professional fees and transportation costs.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

FE B Z 7R

FEET A R H At
FERSSRIR (K1iZ)

19

20

RARKEE

WA PS8 (42)
BELEFRSREE (&)

fisl /5 4 B8 B3 75 A1 25 A 45 18 R SR JE
AR e A E 3R BI AT B AT AE B
REEBEBERRAECHMSHEE -
R2019F3A31H « REBAKE
T 32 B TH /5 48 4919,595,0007% 7T
(20184 : 4,997,000/ T) © % &
B8 7] 45 85 R VR 8 R R FE =R B U
A+ B /1,264,000 7T % 844,000
7 7T (20184F : 1,264,00078 7t 15
20204 | E7) # 9 5l ,R20204F
K 20214 | # 17,487,000 JT
(20184 : 3,733,000/% Jr) I £ 3
HE -

EREZRERRES - B

HREMENKRE

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TET

19,550 39,462

15,283 13,970

34,833 53,432

9,921 8,943

44,754 62,375

Wit BEFRETERMBEERT
BTE ARMREXERHS
3B ¥ AN 1O e R FROR R B R
N5RA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, 20 BHESKERRES B
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) B EMENARIE(Z)
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on JERTE S IBR IR A AR RES
invoice date was as follows: ST -
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT THT
0 to 30 days 0E30H 14,651 38,619
31 to 60 days 31£E60H 3,292 10
61 to 90 days 61290H 705 =
181 to 365 days 1812365H 72 3
More than 365 days @365 H 830 830
19,550 39,462
In the consolidated balance sheet, retention payables RIFEEERBERN  EIREB S
were classified as current liabilities. The ageing of the SERRBEE - EHRESHE
retention payables was as follows: BT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Within 1 year —FR 2,872 4,503
Between 1 and 5 years —E=RF 12,405 9,461
Over 5 years AEFLE 6 6
15,283 13,970

P B S50 A R AR E & 1O Bk [ {5 2
RENRFERE WATINEE

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables

approximated their fair value and were denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
MOP RPTEE
Others Eifb

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

5HE -
2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT T

30,206 48,806

4,431 4,431

196 195

34,833 53,432

175



176

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

21

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Deed of Indemnity, Mr. Lau Chun Ming,
a director of the Company, irrevocably undertakes to
deposit a sum of HK$20,000,000 into a bank account
under the name of the Group for the purpose of
indemnifying the Group against any claims, challenges
and rejections from the Hong Kong tax authority and/or
Macau tax authority and costs incurred in relation to the
Group’s tax liabilities arising up to October 2014.

In the event that no claim in relation to taxation is
instituted by both Macau tax authority and Hong Kong
taxation authority against the Group within seven years
after the date on which dealings in the shares on the
Main Board first commenced, i.e. 16 October 2014
(“the Listing Date”), the balance shall be released
and returned to Mr. Lau Chun Ming on the seventh
anniversary of the Listing Date.

In June 2017, the final and conclusive tax assessment
and final tax demand note for the years 2013 and 2014
were issued by the tax authority in Macau. The Group
has no outstanding amount on the required tax for the
years of assessment of 2013 and 2014 in Macau; the
Macau tax assessment for the years 2013 and 2014
have been concluded, final and settled. There is no tax
liability so far demanded by Hong Kong tax authority in
respect of the transactions and income contemplated
under the Machinery Lease Agreement and the
Machinery Agency Agreement.

In June 2017, the directors (including all of the
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
resolved to partially return HK$17,000,000 out of
the deposit of HK$20,000,000 pursuant of Deed of
Indemnity together with all the bank interests earned
up to 12 July 2017 amounting to HK$1,006,000 in
view of the updated tax positions mentioned above and
the estimate on maximum exposure made by the tax
advisers of the Company. The remaining HK$3,000,000
represented the estimated remaining tax exposure of the
Group. The payment of HK$18,006,000 was made to
Mr. Lau Chun Ming in July 2017.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

21

BN —-—RESFE

BB RERZE - AR AESZIRA
TAERA MBI AR - ShAERER
RSB R, SORPI B2
FIIR MM E - HRREE -
R AEEE E2014F108 EAE
W EBERBANKA  mAEE
% T R17ER 2 77 AfF 320,000,000

ABIT °

WARBRMDEXHAEREREE 2
H (Bl2014F10A16H ([ L H
M) BEFA - BB R
BERGHFIMESASEEIREES
BMIERERZR - AIBRERKR LT A
HEtETE B ENERRETEIR
B ST & o

M2017566 H - BB F A E &
1201346 K2014F & & KR E M
THERRETARBANE  AEEW
£ K (82 MR PI20134F K20144F
SR FEERRARIE - mRFI2013
FR2014FTAME M - IR
B BERBES U EMKEA
ERFEIEBEREBBZETIRS R
WA Z SRR #E o

B Ll SR BB ARR R AR )
IS EERE L M LR EBREE - R
20175%6H ' RARES (BIEFAM
BBURTESR) RAFERE
I8 T8 120,000,000 TR HY
#64> 17,000,000/ JCi&8 [F 5% £ 17 5K
B ZE201747 5128 Fr BEELH — 1)
8 17 17 3 F B.1,006,000% T ° &
T3,000,0007% 7T #5 7 & & &9 (i 51
RN IEEE - R2017F7 A E A
2|4 BF %t 4 3 118,006,000 T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

21  AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR (Continued) 21 EN—REBREE)
The balance of amount due to a director is secured JEf — R E B RIE 2 &R R S BR
by restricted bank balances of HK$3,075,000 (2018: $R1T4594£8,075,0007% 7T (20184 :
HK$3,020,000) and interest bearing at effective interest 3,020,000/ 0 ) A - WiLE B
rate of 1.81% (2018: 1.38%). %1.81% (20184 : 1.38%) 5T & °
22 BORROWINGS 22 f& =&
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current FERED
Obligations under finance leases MEMAERME 1,431 9,115
Long-term bank loans RHRITER 1,969 6,789
3,400 15,904
Current mEh
Short-term bank loans EHERITER 79,910 29,066
Current portion of long-term bank loans R—FREHEED
due for repayment within one year RESRITERH
BNEAER > 4,868 18,980
Obligations under finance leases R—FREHEED
due for repayment within one year MEHERME 7,720 17,161
92,498 65,207
Total borrowings R 95,898 81,111

SE—AEEH o SHREEEERAT 177
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(@) The maturity of borrowings was as follows:

(1)

(i)

Bank loans

The maturity of bank loans are as follows:

Within 1 year —FR
Between 1 and 2 years —ZEWE
Between 2 and 5 years —FhHF

Obligations under finance leases

The maturity of obligations under finance
leases would be as follows:

Within 1 year —F R
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF
Between 2 and 5 years —EhHF

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

(@ ERHNEHBERAT
(i) RITE N

RITEFRH B HIBENR

e
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET TAT
84,778 48,046
1,588 4,827
381 1,962
86,747 54,835

i)  HBEHEEML

MEHEEENEH

BRI
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TR
7,720 17,161
1,431 7,689
- 1,426
9,151 26,276

®  Aunual Repornt 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

22 BORROWINGS (Continued) 22 fBER(E)
(@)  The maturity of borrowings was as follows: (a) EFXRNBEBEROT : (&)
(Continued)
(i) The obligations under finance leases are (i)  BEHEEFESIW
as follows: o’
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Gross finance leases REEM SR
— minimum lease payments —RIEEERMK
Within 1 year — R 7,897 17,852
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF 1,449 7,855
Between 2 and 5 years —EhRE - 1,443
9,346 27,150
Future finance charges on RIRHELE HE BT
finance lease X (195) (874)
Present value of obligations BEHERANEE
under finance leases 9,151 26,276
(b)  The weighted average interest rates were as (o)  INEEFHFELMT :
follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Short-term bank loans MEARITE N 3.2% 1.7%
Long-term bank loans RAFRITER 4.6% 4.1%
Obligations under finance leases BERERMT 4.0% 3.8%
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e SRR

22

BORROWINGS (Continued)

(c)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
were denominated in the following currencies:

HK$
EUR

o
dl gl

EQ
3

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
approximated their fair value as the impact of
discounting is not significant. The fair values are
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

As at 31 March 2019, the finance leases are
secured by certain plant and equipment with
carrying amounts of HK$64,386,000 (2018:
HK$83,709,000) of certain subsidiaries and
guarantees provided by the Company.

The Group’s banking facilities and obligations
under finance leases are subject to annual
review and the utilised facilities are secured or
guaranteed by:

B
EH

Secured
Unsecured

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

22 EBR(E)

€ AEEREROEREENAT
P B ETE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
69,363 52,045
26,535 29,066
95,898 81,111
d) BRITRZERYN  A5E
B A SRR EEEE A TER
HoNFEBRATEER
BEZR -
(e) M2019%F3A31H @&

ENETHBARKAES
64,386,000/%5 7T (20184 :
83,709,000/ 7T ) Ay & T #
W BRI R B AR A
REER -

AEBMRITEENBEM
EAESFORETERN
HEPREEHNATEIAE
R RIER -

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TET
15,988 52,045
79,910 29,066
95,898 81,111
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

()

The Group’s banking facilities and obligations
under finance leases are subject to annual
review and the utilised facilities are secured or
guaranteed by: (Continued)

(i) an unlimited guarantee given by certain
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
same);

(if) certain plant and equipment of the Group

as detailed in notes 13(a) and (b).

The Group did not breach any financial bank
covenant during the year ended 31 March 2019
(2018: none).

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

e MR

AEEMRITEERBEN
ExESFORETERN
BEPREEHNTRIEAE
EIRRER: (8

()  R201943H318 -
& THB AR
H) PR BB HE (R (2018
F /AR &

(i) AEEZETERER
2 (FF RMIE13(a)
K(b)) e

H ZE20194F3A31H It F
B AEEVEZEREMNE
RhER1TE 5 (20184 1 £E) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have
any capital commitment (2018: Nil).

(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The future aggregate minimum lease rental
expenses in respect of hiring equipment, office
and storage premises, and quarters for workers
and directors under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later
than 5 years

(c) Operating lease commitments — as lessor

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have
any operating lease commitments as a lessor
(2018: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has given guarantees
on performance bonds of HK$17,751,000 and
HK$16,500,000, respectively, in respect of two
construction contracts of the Group in its ordinary
course of business (2018: same). The performance
bonds are expected to be released in accordance with
the terms of the respective construction contracts.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

23 EiE
(@) B A
R201943H31H - A& E
W EE A ] B A& E (2018
F ) o
(o) EEHEEAIE—1EAEEEA
BESITRESEHERHE
&G BSFEREEYE
URETIREEBFEHARR
REEESHAITBEERUT
BRI RS2 A5 ¢
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
9,040 8,130
RE
3,428 6,662
12,468 14,792
() EMRERE—(EALEA
MR2019%F3A31H - K& E
YEAEBEAE DT AT
fa] 45 & 70 & & HE (20184F ¢
/) o
24 HARERE

MR201943A31H * NE@ME &
NEE B R S SEH[E A R I 2
BERMREORHEL RS B A
17,751,000/ 7t & 16,500,000/% 7T
(20184 : #HA) - ZERAREKTE
ISR IR S B A DM G ERRR -
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e P RRME

25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25 @FEBRERERMT
OF CASH FLOWS
(a)  Recondiliation of (loss)/profit before income tax to (@  BRETEHR (BB) Jafl R
net cash (used in)/generated from operations: s (FTR) /PSR E
TR EER ¢
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BETERL AT (B1E)
ikl (57,497) 5,625
Depreciation of plant and et R R E
equipment (note 13) (K15£13) 24,699 26,971
Gain on disposal of plant and oS M N R s
equipment - (5,960)
Write-off of plant and Gl N
equipment (note 13) (Hti13) 1,000 172
Finance income (note 8) B WA (H77#8) (3,481) (2,687)
Finance costs (note 8) s ER (41:78) 2,332 4,478
Net exchange differences FERER (2,530) 7,459
(35,477) 36,108
Changes in working capital: EEESE
Decrease in trade and retention ERE FHRERRE S
receivables k> 75,403 36,189
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, e~ T FRIE R E A
prepayments and other receivables U k1A (3 Hn)
S (1,140) 181
(Increase)/decrease in contract BHEE/ TBREF
assets/amounts due from ABHITELHE
customers for contract work () (8,385) 18,383
Increase in trade and retention ENESRENRRES
payables 190 (18,599) (26,102)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals FE=H TR IE N H b fE S
and other payables B, CRA) 978 (5,026)
(Decrease)/increase in contract EREEEBREP
liabilities/amounts due to ABHITELHEE
customers for contract work CRd) /1 an (75,332) 15,159
Decrease in amount due to a director J&{f — 4 & = 3 I8 5 > - (18,006)
Net cash (used in)/generated e Ee (FA) /Fis
from operations R 55 (62,552) 56,886

—R—NFFHR

ZNEEEBBRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25 ZEBSREXRME(E)

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)  In the consolidated statement of cash flows, b) MNEEREREBERT  HE
proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment B ERENRTERIBR
comprise: & -

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FAT

Net book amount (note 13) BRTE FE (H15E13) - 31,789
Gain on disposal of plant and B A B 5% Y R

equipment (note 6) (M it6) - 5,960
Cash proceeds from sales of HERBEEHENRS

plant and equipment Fr 1S 308 - 37,749

184 SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED  ®  iuusat Repont 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25 HZEBELERERWZE(E)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c)  Net debt reconciliation () IREBHE
This section sets out the reconciliation of liability RETET 25 2 FFEH R
from financing activity for each of the years BEHEEZEBERNHEE -
presented.

Liabilities from financing activities

RETDELZBRE
Cash Obligations
and cash  under finance Short-term Long-term
equivalents leases bank loans bank loans Total
HeRk wE gk =
ReEEY HEERME RITER RITER @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEm TE TR TET TR

As at 31 March 2017 R2017£3A31R 347,943 (51,212 (136,933) (63,596) 96,202
Capital element of finance  BEAMEM T

lease payments EAHS = 24,936 = = 24,936
Drawdown of bank loans ~ REURITER - - (36,628) (559) (37,187)
Repayment of bank loans  BRFETER - - 151,954 38,386 190,340
Foreign exchange ANE AR

adjustments - - (7,459 - (7,459)
Decreaseincashand ~ BERHLSEN

cash equivalents o (91,542) - - - (91,542)
As at 31 March 2018 7201833311 256,401 (26,276) (29,066) (25,769) 175,290
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25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25 HEBRERERMT(E)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

() Net debt reconciliation (Continued) ) ITFEBHEKGE)

Liabilities from financing activities

RETHELZ AR

Cash  Obligations
and cash under finance Short-term Long-term

equivalents leases bank loans bank loans Total
BeR HE yibl RH
BESEN REER RITER RITE @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR FHR FEn FHR FHR
As at 31 March 2018 12018537317 256,401 (26,276) (29,066) (25,769) 175,290
Capital element of REREARMN
finance lease payments B4 H% - 17,125 - - 17,125
Drawdown of bank loans EEURTER - - (193,624) - (193,624)
Repayment of bank loans EERTER - - 140,250 18,932 159,182
Foreign exchange HNERE
adjustments - - 2,530 - 2,530
Decrease in cash and BeRBSEEY
cash equivalents HD (59,437) - - - (59,437)
As at 31 March 2019 1201937311 196,964 (9,151) (79,910) (6,837) 101,066
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability
to control, jointly control or exert significant influence
over the other party in holding power over the investee;
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be

26

e P RRME

BBALRS

BBt A LR BRENES - HEES
w&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁMTﬂﬁhﬁﬁ
TEEINALITEERTZEND
AL BEESIFAEBERSEER
B 77 #y R] 5 ) g e [ B SR M O A
T AIRAESRRETNENF
EREENHREEOAL - XHF

related if they are subject to common control or joint

control. Related parties may be individuals or other A o B A LR AEAEAM
entities. T -

(@)

The directors of the Company are of the view that
the following companies were related parties that
had transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of the related party

AL ER

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
ZIREA S A&
Cheer Crown Limited

RBER LA

Cheer Profit International
Enterprise Limited

ENBEEERRAAF]

Cheer Wealth International
Development Limited
EREBREERARAD

East Ascent Enterprlse Limited

RAGEBRAR
Healthy World Investment Limited

REREBR QA

Long Ascent Development Limited

RAZRER AT
Sky Ease Holdings Limited

SR FFH

22 1l Sl Bt & 12 Il O A 1 TR AR A3 R

@ ARAREFRR FIAF
REERNEEETRZ AR
LA AR R AL

Relationship with the Group
HEAREEREFR

Director of the Company

RRGIES

A related company beneficially wholly owned by
Mr. Lau Chun Ming

HERAEE 2 EER AR ME AT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAEBETESTRARKKE 2 EERNBEH AR

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAEBETESERARKKE 2 EERNBH AR

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAEBETESERARKKE 2 EERNBH AR

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HASEE TEEAHANBE AT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HASEE TEE2 AR A NBE AT

A related company wholly owned by Mr. Lau Chun Ming

HERA LS 2 BB RS A A

s ZHEEEEERAH
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 26 BBATRES(H)
(b)  Transactions (o) X 5

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the

consolidated financial statements, the following

transactions were carried out with related parties

at terms mutually agreed by both parties:

Continuing transactions

Paid to related parties:

Rental expenses to Cheer
Crown Limited (note i)

Rental expenses to East Ascent
Enterprise Limited (note i)

Rental expenses to Cheer Profit
International Enterprise Limited (note i)

Rental expenses to Long Ascent
Development Limited (note i)

Rental expenses to Cheer Wealth
International Development Limited (note i)

Rental expenses to Healthy World
Investment Limited (note i)

Expense payable to a related party:
Interest expense payable to
a director (note iii)

BRINER A M I R A BB
PRREEE N - AR E S R
ATIREETT 5 5E M IR RAETT
AR5 :

Note i: Rental expenses for storage of machinery and

equipment are based on terms pursuant to the

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRT FAET
BEXS
ENEHALHE:
IRTFEBERAFMN
MeR> (A1) 2,160 2,160
IR TRACERRAA
MRS (f i) 46 46
IRTEFBREXER
NEMBE R (4 i) 46 46
IRFEAZRERAA
MRS (f i) 600 600
IR TERERERER
NEMBE R (4 i) 876 876
IR TFREKEERA A
MRS (f i) 600 600
BB ALY
FE 1 E 5 8 2 (4 2tiin)
55 163
Btati s RYETE R &R
BHRESAL E
RERE T LB

tenancy agreements as mutually agreed by the

relevant parties.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 26 BEBALRE (&)
(o)  Transactions (Continued) by R5 (%)

Note ii: Rental expenses for directors’ quarters are Vi A ==K == % == o |
based on terms pursuant to the tenancy AT TIERERH
agreements as mutually agreed by the relevant EHHERHENHE
parties. ZBY SR ©

Note fii:Interest expense was payable to a director, Biatii . R B S Tyt E R
Mr. Lau Chun Ming, in respect of the amount —ZEEIAMmE
due to a director (note 26(d)). NEEFZRE LA

(Kt 3E26(d)) °
() Key management compensation (c) FEEE A B RN

Key management includes directors FEEBAEBBRREASESE

(executive and non-executive) of the Group. =E (BT AIEHTT) - BE

The compensation paid or payable to key ERBENKENTEEE

management for employee services is disclosed A B HY R B 5E29(a) %

in note 29(a). = o

(d) Balance — non-trade (d) Eer—EE S
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Payable to a director: EBN—E2EFEBHE
Mr. Lau Chun Ming (note 21) 23R EA & & (KraE21) 3,075 3,020
27 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 27 RAERAQT

Management consider that Silver Bright Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin

& 12 [Z 3% ASilver Bright Holdings
Limited (— 74 58 iz & B & £ i}
BB A R BAEEREER
NA) ZARHURBEH LT AT
m AN EREGETEREESR -

Islands, is the ultimate holding company of the Group,
which is a company indirectly owned by a discretionary
trust, the beneficiary of which is Ms. Leung Lai So.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

28 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 28

OF THE COMPANY

Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Prepayments
Amount due from a subsidiaries

Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Amount due to a director
Accruals and other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

ARANEEEBERKHREED

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
=2 FHT THET
BE
ERBEE
R B A RKIEE 5,927 5,927
REEE
TET FRIR 73 68
JE U — FEI B B A )

I8 177,817 104,151
SRR HI SR 1T A B 3,075 3,020
HeERBLEEY 21,326 94,198

... 202291 201,437
EEHE 208,218 207,364
e
BN HEE
i@ 4,200 4,200
15 (a) 200,859 200,065
SR 205,059 204,265
=R
REBEE
e —RESENIAE 3,075 3,020
FEETFRIA R H A

FE{S 5008 84 79
ames 3159 8099
EahkaEHHE 208,218 207,364

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the

Board of Directors on 21 June 2019 and were signed on

its behalf.

Lau Chun Ming
2 3%
Director

EF

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

ARAIMEERBREN2019%F
6AIBEE =4/ AWl T
AETRERZEE -

Leung Lai So
REF
Director

EF

®  Aunwal Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 28 ARAANEEEBERRREESD
OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
Note (a): Kiit(a) -
Reserve movement of the Company PN R R )
Share Other Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
REVEE Hit %% REEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31H 194,087 5,927 2,400 202,414
Profit for the year EREGF - - 14,451 14,451
Final dividends relating to the BBEZE2017F3A31H
year ended 31 March 2017 IFFERHRERE = = (16,800) (16,800)
At 31 March 2018 R2018%3H31H 194,087 5,927 51 200,065
At 31 March 2018 20183 H31H 194,087 5,927 51 200,065
Profit for the year FERA - - 794 794
At 31 March 2019 #R2019F3A31H 194,087 5,927 845 200,859
Other reserve of the Company represents the difference NN A E b AR P RE = A0
between the net asset value of SW (BVI) acquired over the BV B E FEMBIBARD T ARE
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in AR ERTRAE AN =5 -

exchange thereof.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 29 BEEZENRERS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=M=
The remuneration of each director of the W7 EE T A S8 T
Company which were included in the staff costs AOARABIZEEENMEH
as disclosed in note 7 is set out below: BN

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE2019F3A3 ALEE

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary  Directors’  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total

Exm

S HE ]
fe He  BERAL  ESEE FLAEX it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TiEn TR TR

Executive directors HTER

Mr. Lau Chun Ming* it - 797 66 643 - 1,506
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok* B iR - 840 70 600 - 1,510
Mr. Lau Chun Ka AFER L - 840 70 600 11 1,521
Ms. Leung Lai So AEELT - 456 38 325 - 819
Independent BUFHES

non-executive directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Tt 2%

Roderick 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chu Tak Sum REREE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold EXBELE 240 - - - - 240

720 2,933 244 2,168 11 6,076
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 29 EEFEALERE)
(Continued)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EZWe E)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

HZ018F3A31ALER
Employer’
contribution
Discretionary Directors”  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus Quarters scheme Total
Exm
EUSHE]
Be e  BEEE  ESEE (ELOEX @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TAL TAL TAL T TEL
Executive directors HTER
Mr. Lau Chun Ming? BRI f e - 797 06 643 - 1,506
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok® Bl - 840 70 600 - 1510
Mr. Lau Chun Ka ARFEE - 840 70 600 18 1,528
Ms. Leung Lai So 2EHAT - 456 38 324 - 818
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, T 2%

Roderick 240 = = = = 240
Mr. Chu Tak Sum RERLE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold EXBLEE 240 - - - - 240

720 2,933 244 2,167 18 6,082
# Chairman # FE
2 Chief Executive Officer * ITEABE
—R—AFFHR o =HNREEBERADA
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e PR ERR M

29

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration shown above represents
remuneration received from the Group by these
directors in their capacity as employees to the
Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the

companies how comprising the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, none of
the directors of the Company (i) received or paid
any remuneration in respect of accepting office;
(i) received or paid emoluments in respect of
services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
undertaking; or (iii) waived or has agreed to waive

any emolument (2018: same).

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year ended 31

March 2019 (2018: same).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31

March 2019 (2018: same).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no
consideration was paid by the company to third
parties for making available directors’ services

(2018: same).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

29 EEFEALERE)

®  Aunwal Report 2019
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FEMERAZFEEER/AR
SEEER HABAEE
BETEATNEERALHE
YR B B < o

REE2019F3H31H LEF
ER - BERNQAGES))
B B W ER 3 32 AT A ] B
(LA BEERRQFL
E KB RA B FrAEE SR
B S S S E MBS ¢ 3k
(iR FE KR B REE A
(20184 : FH[) °

E=ZRKERN

HE2019F3A31B IEFE
| E = B UER kg R ER
Ef R IRFE F (20184F : 4
@) °

ERZEERAET

H Z201963A31H IEFE
42 T = 2 U BN 3k 5 Uk ER
R BEB /& ) (20184 : 48
/) o

WERESREMAE=71
SN ZRE

B £2019F3831H L F
B ARRWEGSENES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 29
(Continued)

E=EARER(E)

©

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there
were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with
such directors (2018: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2018: same).

—R—AFFHR o ZNEFEEEFIRDA

BARAES  ZEHIEEA
ERRNEREEREHNE
RMBUER - ARBRZ
FATHEMZZNER

B =20194F3A31H IEF
B WEREES  XEH
EANEREBEBETRE
EHEREEUER UK
BRZEATHEMRZ S
(20184 : #H[A)
EENRG  BHHEDW
BEAEZ

Bk &7 & B 75 3R MY 5E26F
BEES  RERKFAE
IS - EARRER—
FALBEARRBEETEER
MEEFEAEZAEAR
AXRBEBNEARS &
BER A KEE (20185 : #H
@) e
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFMBME

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities AEERARAETREEMND FIEEE
and equity of the Group for the last five financial years is as LREE BEUARESEMET -

follows.
Year ended 31 March
BZE3A3MBLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Results E FHET TAT FHET T T FHET
Revenue A 452,268 518,479 817,682 1,061,482 851,285
Gross Profit EF 4,382 44,045 145,225 210,012 306,245
(Loss)/profit before KR BT 18 %54 Al
income tax (E18) %7 (57,497) 5,625 91,215 165,509 241,010
Income tax credit/ sl e,
(expense) (FAX) 7,127 (106)  (12,235) (12,632) (21,842)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(FE),/
kil (50,370) 5,519 78,980 152,877 219,168

As at 31 March
M3A31H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TAET TET TET TET

Assets BE

Non-current assets EMEBEE 595,180 608,385 654,959 608,314 513,389
Current assets MENEE 262,754 385,418 551,115 546,640 472,831
Total assets BEBE 857,934 993,803 1,206,074 1,154,954 986,220
Liabilities 8&

Non-current liabilities EREBEE 59,537 78,281 127,437 185,214 184,453
Current liabilities mEBE 172,481 229,802 382,406 314,689 273,987
Total liabilities EE8HE 232,018 308,083 509,843 499,903 458,440
Total equity R4 EE 625,916 685,720 696,231 655,051 527,780
Note: Kzt -

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial Pl ES A B RSEZTFREK A — I
statements. o
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